
  
  

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

March 17, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
Shelton Civic Center 

 

 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda 

 
B.  Council Reports  

C.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
The City Council invites members of the public to provide comment on any topic at this time. Please sign in on the public comment 
sheet and keep an instruction card.  If you would like to comment on a Business or Action item, please list the agenda item number on 
the list. City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter into a dialogue during public comment. If the Council feels an issue requires 
follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an appropriate time. 

 
D.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1. Vouchers numbered 101611 through 101655 in the amount of $72,734.26 
2. Vouchers numbered 101656 through 101713 in the amount of $278,346.17 
3. Minutes from the business meetings of December 3, 2019 and January 7, 2020 

 
E.  Presentations 
      1.  City Code Updates – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 
 
F.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
      1. City Policy Updates 100-05 & 100-12 – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
G.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 
      1. Regional SWAT Agreement – Presented by Police Chief Darrin Moody 
      2. Downtown Connector Final Acceptance – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
      3. DOC Grant Acceptance for Civic Center Parking Log – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
      4. EM&R Purchases – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
      5. Resolution No. 1156-0320 Entering into an ILA with Squaxin Tribe – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
H.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
 
I.    Administration Reports 

• City Manager Report 
 
J.  New Items for Discussion 
 
K.  Announcement of Next Meeting – April 7, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
L.  Adjourn 

 The City of Shelton is committed to the non-discriminatory treatment of all persons in employment and the delivery 
of services and resources.  If you require accommodation for your attendance at the City Council meeting, please 
call (360) 432-5103 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 



 

Updated 3/10/20 
 

 
2020 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 4/7 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
• Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 1949-0220 

Single Room Occupancy 
Action Agenda 

• Ordinance No. 1948-0120 Parks, Recreation, 
Open Space and Trails (PROST) Plan 

• Updated City policies 100-05 & 100-12 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 3/27 

Wed. 4/15 
6:00 p.m. 

Special Meeting Spotlight Shelton Community Meeting N/A 

Mon. 4/20 
4:30 p.m. 

Special Meeting Legislative Wrap Up (location TBD) N/A 

Tues. 4/21 
5:00 p.m. 

Special Meeting 
Study Session 

Road Rating Discussion Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 4/10 

Tues. 4/21 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• 2019 Budget Year End Review 
• Resident Owned Communities ROC) 

Business Agenda                                                              
• Ordinance No. 1950-0320 Budget Amendment 

for 2020 
Action Agenda 

• Ordinance No. 1949-0220 Single Room 
Occupancy 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 4/10 

Tues. 5/5 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. 1950-0320 Budget Amendment 

for 2020 
Administration Report 

• Warrant Amnesty Day (Judge Greer) 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 4/24 

Tues. 5/19 Regular Consent Agenda Packet Items Due:  



 

Updated 3/10/20 
 

6:00 p.m. Meeting • Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
Presentations 

•  
Business Agenda                                                              

•  
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Fri. 5/8 

Tues. 6/2 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 5/22 

Tues. 6/16 
5:50 p.m. 

Regular SMPD 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 6/5 

Tues. 6/16  
6:00 p.m. 

Regular 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 6/5 

Tues. 7/7  
6:00 p.m. 

Regular 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 6/26 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 
• Outside City Water/Sewer Extensions 
• More Standing Committees by the Council  



































































 1 

City of Shelton  
Department of Community Development 

 

STAFF REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Project Name: Shelton Municipal Code 2020 Updates 
 
 
 
Project Description: 
 

The Shelton Municipal Code (SMC) contains the rules, regulations, or codes 
enacted into law by the City Council. It provides for flexibility in administration 
of municipal government to meet local needs.  As time and conditions 
change, the SMC is updated to account for State or Federal requirements, 
public safety, and health.   
 
Staff is undertaking a wholesale review of the SMC to determine whether 
codes are outdated or inaccurate, no longer meet State or Federal standards, 
meet the City Council’s goals, and provide clear and definitive regulations.   
 
Staff is requesting City Council review the following list of SMC Chapters 
identified for changes and provide direction  
 
 
 
 
Police 
 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
8 Junk storage Addressing stored junk vehicles and salvage on private property 
9 Controlled 

substance 
prohibited 

New addition to address illegal narcotics in city limits, misdemeanor 
arrest. 

11 Unattached 
trailers 
prohibited 

New code to address dump trailers, cargo trailer, campers not attached 
to a vehicles parked on city street/ right of way for extended periods 

11 Abandoned 
vehicles 

Prohibit storage of vehicles on city street/right of way for extended 
periods of time. 

   
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

 
Community Development 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
7  Animals 
7.04.180 
Animals 

Dogs prohibited in city 
parks 

Eliminate.  Park regulations will define 

8.68.030 
Park regulations 

Alcoholic beverages Update to include provisions under special event rules 

8.68.140 
Park regulations 

Pet animals Update to include dog parks and other areas allowed 

17 Permit Review and Processing 
17  Edit to provide clarity and consistency with permit 

applications classified for processing review 
17.08.010  Update to reference adopted fee schedule 
18 Building, Construction, Mobile/Manufactured Homes & Flood Damage Protection 
18 
 

 
 

Adopt 2018 International building, mechanical, plumbing, 
fire, Washington State energy code, uniform code for 
abatement of dangerous buildings, uniform housing code, 
climatic and geographic design criteria 

18 18.14 Add single room occupancy definitions 
18  2018 property maintenance code 
19 Subdivisions 
19.16 Preliminary plat Change parcel minimum 
19.27 Parks and recreation 

standards 
Adopt specific standards as identified in PROST Plan  

19.28 
 

Short subdivisions Increase maximum lots from four to nine 



 3 

 
 
 
Community Development - continued 

 
 

20 Zoning 
20  Remove all height limits 
20.08.020 
 

Duplex triplex Increase allowances of placement 

20.08.020 
 

Secondary dwelling 
units(ADU) 

Remove owner occupancy requirement, review size 
maximum, parking requirement 

20.08.020 Accessory uses Chickens 
20.08.050 Setbacks Explore setbacks that promote livable neighborhoods, 

remove building height 
20.32 Planned Unit 

Development 
Add single room occupancy definitions 

20.38 Signs Update to meet current law- content cannot be 
considered, electronic reader boards, murals, temporary 
signs 

20.60 Landscaping/Screening Refine and clarify landscape requirements including 
addition of trees in NR, storm ponds etc.   

20.64 
Design 
standards 

 Clarify and/or add design standards to all categories 

20.64.040 
Design 
standards 

Secondary dwelling 
units 

Remove owner occupancy requirement, review size 
maximum, parking requirement 

20.65.050 
North 
Sheltonville 
Historic District 

Design standards Clarify guidelines 

20.67.050 
Simpson-Reed 
Historic District 

Design standards Clarify guidelines 

New sections to add 
  Heritage, landmark, public tree preservation 
  Lighting 
  Expiration of approvals 
  Cottage/ carriage homes  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

 
Administrative Services 
 

 
 

 
Finance 
 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
2.12.020  Update language to current responsibilities, duties, and powers (does 

this need to be done for all directors) 
3.65  New section for City investment rules 
3.66  New section for debt financing and internal loans 
3.04.260  Add Capital Resources Fund 
2.32  Add Administration department 
3.10.020  Add definition for “director” 
3.67  Add Transportation Benefit District tax (purpose discussed in title 12 

but not the authority to tax) 
3.52  Updated B&O ordinance to match state model ordinance language 
3.10  Update administrative provisions with updated language from 

ordinance 
 
 

 
Clerk 
 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
2 Administration and Personnel 
2.04 
Council Meetings 

2.04.010 
Time & place 

Study sessions held at 5:00pm before regular business meetings. 

 
 

2.06.010 
Declaration 
of purpose 

Not sure if changes are needed – Code currently states: 
It is found and declared that there is currently no complete 
description of department functions and responsibilities, general 
procedures, departmental procedures, department instructions or 
policy statements of the departments of the city of Shelton 
municipal government. Each department acts autonomously to 
carry out its functions and responsibilities without adequate 
explanation to other departments or to the public. The purpose of 
this chapter is to require each city department to state its guiding 
policy and operational procedures so that other departments as 
well as the public may better understand and cooperate, and to 
require written instructions to department personnel so as to make 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
2 Add Add Administrative Services Department 
2.44  Does the fire department information remain there? 
2.78 Remove Public Works/Planning/Development Services Manager position does 

not exist 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Shelton/#!/Shelton02/Shelton0278.html#2.78


 5 

clear the duties of city employees. It is the belief of the city council 
that these formal statements will develop better managerial 
procedures and thereby benefit city government. (Ord. 1921-0518 
(part), 2018; Ord. 1230 § 1, 1988) 

 2.06.020 
Definitions 

Department list includes fire 

 2.06.050 
Manual 

Do we have a manual? 

 2.08.020 Change Director of Planning to Director of Community 
Development 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Public Works 
 
Chapter Section Proposed changes 
11  
Traffic control 

 To be addressed by Director 

12  
Streets and 
sidewalks 

 To be addressed by Director 

13 Stormwater  To be addressed by Director 
14  
Sewers 

 To be addressed by Director 

16 
Reclaimed water 

 To be addressed by Director 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F1) 

Touch Date:  03/03/2020 
Brief Date:     03/17/2020       
Action Date:  04/07/2020 

Department:  Administration 
   
Presented By:  Jeff Niten  

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Updating City Policies 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  Policy 100-05 
  Policy 100-12 
   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
City staff, as a whole, have been working to update all City policies.  The two policies attached concern records 
management and public records.  The Clerk’s office is writing a grant in order to obtain funds to help the City 
manage its records according to the Secretary of State’s guidelines.  With Council approval, these two policies 
would become part of the grant application. 
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A   
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Additional information is available from the City Clerk’s office.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests the Council concur to place these items on the April 7, 2020 Action Agenda. 
 



Records Management Policy & Procedure 100-05 
 

1 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
Records Management Policy 
 

GROUP: 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
100-05 

FIRST READING: 
March 17, 2020 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
April 7, 2020 

SUPERCEDES: 
100-05 dated April 1, 2003 

PREPARED BY: 
Donna Nault 
 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

1.0 PURPOSE  
The City of Shelton’s Records Management Program was established to provide 
direction and guidance to City employees and elected officials in the management of 
records created or received in the conduct of City business, and to ensure the City 
manages its records in compliance with applicable state, federal laws and rules. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED 

 All City departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES 

 Office of the Secretary of State – Washington State Archives Division of Records 
Management – Common Records Retention Schedule (CORE): CORE is the guideline 
used to identify records series, a retention schedule, special maintenance instructions, 
and procedures for disposing of records.  
http://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsretentionschedules.aspx  

 Revised Code of Washington – Chapter 40 Records and Chapter 42 Public Records Act 
(RCW’s are the compilation of all permanent laws currently in force) 
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/  

 Washington Administrative Code – Chapter 434-600 through 434-840 (WACs are 
administrative regulations, or rules, adopted by state agencies’ executive branch) 
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/  

 Shelton Municipal Code – 2.06 City Departments; 2.18 City Manager; 2.22 City Clerk 
https://sheltonwa.gov/government/municipal_code  

 City of Shelton Policies & Procedures – 100-01; 100-6; 100-7; 100-12; 100-17; 100-24; 
200-1610; 200-1650 and 200-1651  w:\commonallstaff\citypolicies  

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

http://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsretentionschedules.aspx
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/
https://sheltonwa.gov/government/municipal_code


Records Management Policy & Procedure 100-05 
 

2 
 

In order to manage the City’s records in an efficient manner, streamline paper flow, 
provide for document archiving, minimize storage constraints, and remain in compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, policies and procedures, which govern agency record 
keeping practices, the City’s Record Management Program will implement best practices 
to include: 

• Annual identification and disposal of obsolete records, 
• The transfer of historically valuable records to the Washington State Archives 

system (Olympia Branch, 
• Removal of non-essential records from office storage areas, 
• Protection and security backup of records essential to City authority and 

operations, 
• Disaster preparedness, 
• Records system integrity and accessibility; and, 
• Effective compliance with disclosure of public records requests 

5.0 DEFINITIONS 

 5.1 Staff Designations 

  5.1.1 City Clerk:  The City Clerk is the designated Public Records Officer.  The 
Public Records Officer is responsible for the City’s Records Management Program and 
provides advice, direction, support, and oversees the management of said records, 
policies and procedures.   

5.1.2 City Clerk’s Designee:  The City Clerk’s Designee is responsible for 
tracking records and information that pertains to the legislative and executive branches 
of the City, and provides liaison support to department Records Designees to ensure the 
City’s Records Management Program is being followed. 

5.1.3 Records Designee:  A Records Designee is assigned by their department 
director to manage and maintain its department’s records.  Examples of responsibilities 
include, but are not limited to, ensuring the physical safety and protection of records, 
day-to-day management of records (paper and electronic), archiving, following the City’s 
Records Management Policy, and working in coordination with the City Clerk and/or their 
designee. 

5.2 Records Series 

5.2.1 Active/Semi-Active Records:  Records/information regularly used to 
conduct government activities are reviewed annually to ensure only the active and semi-
active records are stored.  

  5.2.2 Inactive Records:  Records/information that are accessed on a limited 
basis.   
 

  5.2.3 Essential Records:   Records/information that are essential to the 
continuous operation of the City.  These records/information do not necessarily have a 
permanent retention or historic value, but are preserved ensuring that in the event of a 
disaster the information can be easily accessed and operations can continue.   

 
   5.2.4 Historical Records:  Historical records/information document the history of 

the government and community.  Historic records/information contain significant 



Records Management Policy & Procedure 100-05 
 

3 
 

information about persons, places, events, governmental events and are sometimes 
records and information that are valuable because of their age or rarity.  Records and 
information that are determined to require preservation and are no longer required to 
remain on-site are transferred to the Washington Secretary of State Archives Division.   

   5.2.5 Electronic Records/Information:  Electronic records are to be easily 
accessible and preserved for the required retention period on a City server in a format 
that preserves the integrity of the original record.  Retention schedules apply to email, 
social media, text, voice messages, websites and databases.  A printed hard copy of an 
electronic record is not a substitute for the electronic version. 

6.0 PROCEDURES   
6.1 Active/Semi-Active Records/Information:  It is the responsibility of each 

department Records Designee to maintain and manage all active and semi-active 
records/information specific to their department.  

6.2 Essential Records/Information Protection: In the Spring of each year, the 
City Clerk and/or their designee will work with department Record Designees to identify 
essential records/information and project the costs association with their preservation. 

6.3 Inactive Records/Information & Storage – In the Spring of each year, 
Department Records Designees will compile a list of records that have become inactive 
and, after an interdepartmental review, will designate a record Disposition Authority 
Number (“DAN”) using the Washington State General Records Retention Schedule.  The 
department Records Designee will determine the record/information termination date 
and assign a destruction date to the record/information, and record the information in the 
City’s records data system.  For records/information that are to be stored in the City’s 
central records storage area, the City Clerk and/or their Designee will assign a shelving 
location to the Records Center Label.  The department Records Designee will then move 
the files/records to the appropriate shelving location and input all the information relating 
to the inactive records/information into the City’s information database. 
 

6.4 Inactive Records/Information Activation – Records Designees must 
submit a completed Inactive Records Request form to the City Clerk’s Office.  If the 
review of the file is temporary, the file will be provided to the requesting staff with an 
expected date of return.  If staff is seeking reactivation, the City Clerk’s Designee will 
review the request, and ask the City Clerk for comments.  After a decision has been 
made, a notation will be indicated on the form and returned to the City Clerk’s Designee 
who will then notify staff of the decision. If the request has been approved, the City 
Clerk’s Designee will pull the record/information from its central storage location and 
remove it from the records database, unless it is determined by the City Clerk to leave 
the record in the database and assign a new inactive date.  If not approved, the City’s 
Clerk’s Designee will forward the City Clerk's comments to the requestor and the record 
will remain archived.  

6.5 Destruction of Inactive Records/Information Past Retention Period -- The 
department Records Designees will prepare a list of records that are scheduled for 
destruction along with the Records Destruction/Transfer Checklist and a Request for In-
House Destruction to the City Clerk and/or their Designee for review and approval prior 
to destruction of any records.  The Department Records Designee will destroy the 
records after obtaining required signatures from the Clerk’s Office. 

 



Records Management Policy & Procedure 100-05 
 

4 
 

6.6 Transfer to State Archives of Historical Records – The City Clerk and/or 
their Designee will prepare a list of records/information that is scheduled for transfer to 
the Washington State Archives and forward the list along with the Records 
Destruction/Transfer Checklist to the appropriate department Records Designee for 
review and interdepartmental approval. The City Clerk will perform the final review of the 
request.  Requests will be returned with comments and/or authorization.  
Records/information to be transferred to the Washington State Archives, the City Clerk 
or their Designee will update the information in the City’s records database and then 
transfer the documents/information to the Washington State Archives 

 
6.7 Electronic Records – Records/information created and/or received in the 

transaction of public business are public records and subject to the laws, regulations and 
rules governing the retention, disclosure, destruction and archiving of public 
records/information.  Electronic records must be retained in electronic format and remain 
searchable, usable, retrievable and authentic for the length of the designated retention 
period.  Employees have 60 days from the date a communication is sent or received to 
determine if the email meets the criteria as retainable.  If so, the electronic record will be 
placed in a pre-assigned folder on the W:\ Drive for the required retention period.    

 
6.8 Information Technology Staff – Information Technology staff will assist the 

City Clerk and/or Designee as well as department Records Designees in developing, 
implementing, and maintaining an electronic records storage system that supports this 
policy and a disaster recovery backup system for City documents/information. 



Disclosure of Public Records 100-12  1 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
Disclosure of Public Records 
 

GROUP: 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
100-12 

FIRST READING: 
March 17, 2020 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
April 7, 2020 

SUPERCEDES: 
100-12 (not dated) 

PREPARED BY: 
Donna Nault 
 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 
1.0 PURPOSE 

 
To develop guidelines for disclosure of the City’s public records consistent with the intent 
of the Washington State Public Records Act, RCW Chapter 42.56, which is to provide 
full access to public records unless specifically exempted by state or federal law. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED 

 All City departments 

3.0 REFERENCES 

 Public Records Act (“PRA”),RCW Chapter 42.56; PRA Model Rules, WAC Chapter 44-
14 

4.0 DEFINITIONS 

4.1 Records Officer:  The City Clerk has been appointed by the City Council and will 
serve as the point of contact for members of the public requesting disclosure of public 
records, and will oversee compliance with all disclosure requirements. 

4.2 Records Designee:  Each department director will appoint a Records Designee 
who will be responsible for coordinating the production of requested records for their 
department.  If redaction is required, the Records Designee will be responsible for 
redacting the records and producing an exemption log. 

5.0 APPLICATION 

All departments must comply with this Policy with the exception of the Shelton Municipal 
Court, which is not considered an “agency” subject to the Public Records Act.  Nast v. 
Michels, 107 Wn.2d 300 (1986); City of Federal Way v. Koenig, 167 Wn.2d 341 (2009). 

 



Disclosure of Public Records 100-12  2 
 

6.0 PROCEDURES 
 
 6.1  Legal Review:  The City Clerk should seek legal review of all non-routine 

requests.  Legal review shall be sought whenever the City Clerk determines that a public 
records request: 

• Is ambiguous and requires clarification 
• Requires notice to affected third parties named in the records 
• Is made in conjunction with ongoing, threatened or potential litigation 
• Requires the application of unusual, complex or non-routine exemptions 
• Requires a complex search involving a variety of sources 
• Involves a high-profile issue or is subject to public or media scrutiny 
• May require the production of records from personal accounts or 

electronic devices 
• In any other circumstance in which the input of legal counsel will assist 

the City in fully discharging its duties under the Public Records Act while 
avoiding costly litigation 

Because public records issues are time sensitive, all Records Designees who believe 
legal review may be needed, will notify the City Clerk immediately.  If the City Clerk 
agrees legal review is necessary, the City Clerk will promptly contact the City Attorney. 

6.2 Request For Public Records:  All department offices will accept requests for 
disclosure of public records. 

6.3 Request For Records Outside of Department:  All department offices will accept 
public records requests for records not associated with their department and 
immediately forward the request to the City Clerk.  If the requester wants immediate 
attention, staff will direct the requester to the City Clerk.  The City Clerk will 
communicate with the appropriate department’s Records Designee. 

6.4 Requests Made Verbally Or On A Non-City Form:  Any staff person who receives 
a telephone call requesting public records will fill out the City’s Public Request Form, or if 
the requester is present and does not wish to personally fill out a form requesting public 
records, the staff person helping the requester will fill out the form.  The staff person 
should clarify the specific records the requester is seeking to ensure the request is as 
clear as possible.  The form will be submitted to the City Clerk for processing. 

7.0 FILLING REQUESTS 

7.1 Filled At Time Requested Or Within Five Business Days:  If possible, without 
undue disruption to other duties, staff should make the records available for inspection 
and/or copying at the time of the request.  If more time is necessary, staff should attempt 
to make the records available for inspection and/or copying within five business days. 

7.2 Requests That Cannot Be Filled Within Five Business Days:  If the records 
cannot be produced within a five business day period, the City Clerk is responsible for 
sending a written response to the requester within five business days of the request.  
The five-day letter will acknowledge receipt of the request and clarification if needed, 
explaining why additional time is needed to respond and estimate the time needed to 
complete the request.  If the City plans to answer the request in installments, the five-
day letter will provide an installment schedule and an estimated date for completing the 
full request.  If the request cannot be filled or any installments provided by the estimated 
dates promised, the City Clerk will provide a written statement to the requestor before 



Disclosure of Public Records 100-12  3 
 

the date has passed explaining the reason for the delay and providing a new 
installment/completion date. 

7.3 Single and Multi-Department Request For Public Records:  When a request 
requires more than a single department to search for and produce records, the City 
Clerk will notify the Records Designees from all affected departments of the request and 
set a due date for a search to be completed and the records to be produced to the City 
Clerk.  If a Records Designee requires additional time to conduct a search and provide 
the records, that information will be shared with the City Clerk within two business days.  
The Records Designee has the responsibility of gathering responsive records and 
sending them to the City Clerk on or before the due date.  The Records Designee will 
provide only records that are responsive to the request, and will produce the records in 
an organized manner that they may be produced to the requester without additional work 
by the City Clerk.  The City Clerk will coordinate the release of information to the 
requester. 

8.0 DISCLOSURE OF RECORDS 

8.1 Records Disclosed At Time of Request:  The Records Designee, along with the 
City Clerk, will be responsible for completing the disclosure request/response. 

8.2 Public Disclosure Records That Cannot Immediately Be Disclosed:  After 
communicating with the Records Designee, the City Clerk will be responsible for 
providing the requester with a written response within five business days, including an 
estimated date for providing the records. 

8.3 Records To Be Redacted Or Withheld:  If redaction is required, the Records 
Designee will be responsible for redacting the records and completing an exemption log.  
The redacted records and the exemption log will be given to the City Clerk for disclosure.  
The Records Designee will keep a copy of all documents redacted for the time period 
specified in the State Records Retention Schedule, unless risk management concerns 
warrant a longer retention period.  Records should seldom be withheld in their entirety, 
as it is usually possible to redact exempt information and produce the remainder of the 
record.  The City Clerk should consult with the City Attorney before withholding records 
in their entirety.  Any records withheld must be described on an exemption log, including 
the number of pages, author/recipient, date, type of record, legal cite to the exemption, 
and a brief explanation of how the exemption applies. 

8.4 Records Production that have a Combination of Release, Withholding or 
Redaction:  (See 8.2 Public Disclosure Records That Cannot Immediately Be Disclosed 
and 8.3 Records To Be Redacted or Withheld) 

9.0 SEARCHING FOR PUBLIC RECORDS 

9.1 The City Is Required To Conduct Reasonably Diligent Searches For Requested 
Public Records:  When filling requests, Records Designees and the City Clerk will 
search every paper and electronic location where requested records may reasonably be 
found.  This may include a search of personal accounts and electronic devices, 
depending on the request.  The City’s information Technology staff will assist with 
complex searches for electronic records including, but not limited to, emails and text 
messages. 

9.2 Searches Shall Be Carefully Documented For Complex and Non-Routine 
Requests:  The City Clerk will work with Records Designees to ensure that the search 



Disclosure of Public Records 100-12  4 
 

techniques used including search terms and the locations searched are 
contemporaneously documented. 

9.3 Charges For Public Disclosure Records:  The City has determined that it would 
be unduly burdensome to calculate actual costs for production of public records.  
Accordingly, the City will charge for public records consistent with the Fee Schedule 
contained in the Public Records Disclosure Act.  The City Clerk will evaluate the need to 
charge for customized electronic access on a case-by-case basis. 

9.4 Large Requests:  For requests estimated to be in excess of 50 pages, the City 
Clerk may require a deposit in an amount not to exceed ten percent of the estimated 
cost of providing records.  If the City makes records available on an installment basis, 
the City may charge for each installment before it is provided.  If an installment is not 
claimed or reviewed, the City may close the request after providing notice to the 
requester. 

10.0 CREATING NEW RECORDS 

The Public Records Act does not require the City to create new records that do not 
already exist at the time of the request.  However, there may be times when it is more 
efficient for the City, and more helpful for the requester, to create a new record in lieu of 
providing the records requested.  For example, if a request seeks discrete information 
contained in a large volume of records, it may be more efficient and helpful for the City to 
produce a summary of the requested information.  The City Clerk shall confirm with the 
requester that producing a newly created record will satisfy the request. 

11.0 REVIEW OF DENIALS 

The Public Records Act requires agencies to have a process for prompt review of the 
denial of records requests.  It is seldom, if ever, appropriate to deny a request for public 
records.  The City Clerk shall consult the City Attorney if a denial is being contemplated.  
Requesters may ask the City Manager to review any denials.  The City Manager or 
designee shall respond within two business days. 

12.0 LIST OF INDIVIDUALS FOR COMMERCIAL PURPOSES 

The Public Records Act prohibits the City from disclosing lists of individuals if the 
requester is seeking such lists for commercial purposes.  If a list of individuals is being 
sought and the City Clerk suspects the requester has commercial motivations, the City 
Clerk shall consult the City Attorney about how to handle the request. 

13.0 TRAINING 

The City Clerk, Records Designees, Department Directors/Managers and City 
Councilmembers shall undergo regular training on the Public Records Act compliance. 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 

Touch Date: 02/24/2020 
Brief Date:       02/24/2020     
Action Date:  03/17/2020 

Department: Police 
   
Presented By: Darren Moody 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Regional SWAT Agreement 
 
   ATTACHMENTS:  
   ILA 

   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The Shelton Police Department has been a partner in the Mason County SWAT Team for many years. In 2017, 
for legal reasons concerning recent statewide court rulings, we pulled out of that partnership. Recently, we were 
able navigate the legal issues and are able to once again utilize this resource and training for our officers.  

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
If we choose not to maintain this partnership, we cannot access to those emergency services when needed.  
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Uniforms and equipment 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
None 
   
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends:  “I move to approve this Inter-local Agreement in order to partner with the Mason County  
SWAT Team.” 
   



 

Page 1 of 8 
 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR MASON COUNTY REGIONAL SWAT TEAM 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made under the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Chapter 39.34 RCW) and 
the Mutual Aid Peace Officers Powers Act (chapter 10.93 RCW) between the Mason 
County, the City of Shelton, Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife, Mason 
County Fire District #2, and Central Mason Fire District (the “Signatory Agencies”).  
Through this agreement, the Signatory Agencies agree to provide mutual aid and support 
for a multijurisdictional Special Weapons and Tactics Team (“SWAT team”) as provided 
herein. 
 
WHEREAS, incidents of a serious criminal or emergent nature often require officers with 
specialty training and equipment in excess of what an individual law enforcement agency 
can reasonably provide on its own. 

 
WHEREAS, these incidents often can be effectively resolved via the cooperation and 
collective effort of law enforcement jurisdictions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Signatory Agencies agree as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Definitions 
 
For the purposes of this Agreement and all exhibits attached hereto the following terms, 
phrases, words and their derivations shall have the meanings given herein.  Words not 
defined shall be given their common and ordinary meaning. The word “shall” is always 
mandatory and not merely directory. 
 
A. Call Out means any use or mobilization of the SWAT team following the request of 

any Signatory Agency pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
B. Parent Agency means the Signatory Agency designated to oversee SWAT 

operations and maintain the SWAT operational budget.  At the time of execution 
of this Agreement, the Parent Agency is Mason County.  

 
C. Primary Geographic or Territorial Jurisdiction means the territorial boundaries of 

the city, town, or other public agency or unit of local government in which a law 
enforcement agency is authorized to act.  Such jurisdiction includes the definition 
contained in RCW 10.93.020, as now enacted or here after amended. 

 
D. Primarily Responsible Agency means the law enforcement agency within whose 

local geographic or territorial jurisdiction a call out occurs, if it occurs within a 
Signatory Agency jurisdiction.  If the call out takes place outside the geographic or 
territorial jurisdiction of a Signatory Agency, then the term shall mean the Signatory 
Agency who requested the call out. 

 



 

Page 2 of 8 
 

E. Requesting Agency means a law enforcement agency that has requested 
assistance from the SWAT team. 

 
F. SWAT Commander means the individual responsible for directing the overall 

tactics and deployment of the SWAT team.  Mason County shall appoint the SWAT 
Commander, who shall hold a minimum rank of Chief. 

 
G. Special Weapons and Tactics (“SWAT”) Team means a team of individual law 

enforcement officers, drawn from the Signatory Agencies, qualified by training and 
expertise to perform the tasks of a Tier 2 SWAT Team as defined in the Tactical 
Response and Operations Standard for Law Enforcement Agencies, published by 
the National Tactical Officer’s Association (“NTOA Manual” 2018).  The SWAT team 
also includes a negotiator team composed of individual law enforcement officers, 
also drawn from the Signatory Agencies, qualified by training and expertise to 
perform the tasks of Negotiator.  The capabilities of the SWAT team shall include 
barricaded subject operations, high risk warrants, hostage situations, high risk 
apprehension, high risk security, and terrorism response operations.   
 

H. Team Leader means the individual responsible for directing tactics and operations 
of the SWAT team in the field.  Mason County shall appoint the Team Leader, who 
shall hold a minimum rank of corporal. 
 

Section 2.  Objective 
 

The primary objective of the SWAT Team is to respond effectively and appropriately to 
emergencies, major incidents and/or major law enforcement operations that create, or 
have the potential to create, significant and higher safety risk for public safety personnel 
and the public. 
 
Section 3.  Policies & Procedures 
 

A. Mason County to Adopt Policies/Procedures:  As the Parent Agency, Mason 
County shall adopt policies, procedures and regulations applicable to the SWAT 
team’s operations and structure, consistent with best practices. In addition, Mason 
County may adopt or modify standards for qualification and selection to the Team, 
and subsequent training required for continued participation on the Team.  
Following the adoption, modification, or removal of any policy or procedure, 
Mason County shall forward notice of the change to each Signatory Agency, along 
with an updated copy of the applicable policy/procedure/regulation, if applicable. 

 
Section 4. Operation of the SWAT Team 

 
A. Governing Policies and Procedures: During a callout, members of the SWAT team 

shall be governed by, and act in accordance with, the SWAT policies, procedures, 



 

Page 3 of 8 
 

and regulations adopted by Mason County and/or generally applicable to SWAT 
operations.   

 
B. Team Structure:  The goal of the SWAT team is to have a minimum of seventeen 

(17) team members including one Team Leader. 
 
1. Training:  Each team member shall have completed an 80 hour SWAT basic 

course from an accredited organization, and completed probation at his or 
her employing agency, before being appointed to the SWAT team.  
Members must complete on-going monthly team training of 16 hours.  
Snipers and negotiators must have specialized training in addition to the 
above requirements.   
 

2. Personnel:  The SWAT team shall be comprised of the following number of 
members from the Signatory Agencies:    

 
- Mason County:    10 team members, plus the  

SWAT Commander 
- City of Shelton:   4 team members 

 
3. Vacant Positions: When attrition occurs in the SWAT team, vacancies shall 

be filled as promptly as possible by the Signatory Agency employing the 
vacant member. 

 
Section 5. Call Outs 
 
A. Call Out Request: In the event that the Chief Law Enforcement officer of a Signatory 

Agency or designee determines the Signatory Agency has a need for the services of 
the SWAT team, her or she shall contact the on-duty County Sheriff Supervisor to 
make the request.  Such requests for assistance shall describe the nature of the 
incident and, if possible, specify the number of police officers and types of 
equipment required, and where and to whom such officers are to report and where 
and to whom the equipment should be delivered. 

 
B. Call Out Acceptance:  The SWAT Commander or designee shall determine if the 

call-out request requires the capabilities of the SWAT team according to the criteria 
outlined in the risk matrix and NTOA standards.   
 

C. Withdrawal From Call Out:  The SWAT Commander or designee, with input from 
the member agencies, shall have the authority to withdraw the SWAT team from 
any call out at any time he/she determines the incident no longer requires the 
capabilities of the SWAT team.  
 

D. Emergency Withdrawal of Single Agency From Callout: The Chief Law Enforcement 
officer of a Signatory Agency or designee may withdraw all of that agency’s 



 

Page 4 of 8 
 

personnel/services from a call out if an emergency, major incident, or major crime 
event occurs within that jurisdiction that requires additional personnel to safely 
and appropriately respond to.  In general, however, each Signatory Agency shall 
direct SWAT team members in its employ to respond to a call out as promptly and 
fully as possible.  

 
Section 6. Budgeting and Cost-Sharing  
 
A. Host Agency: The Host Agency shall be responsible for maintaining the budget, as 

well as all budget-related records and receipts. 
 
B. Costs borne solely by Signatory Agencies:  The following costs/expenses of 

participation in the SWAT team are to be borne solely by the individual Signatory 
Agency that employees the Team Member(s) to which the cost accrues: 

 
1. Compensation for Team Members employed by the Signatory Agency, 

including benefits and overtime; 
 

2. The cost of outfitting an individual Team Member for participation on the 
team, including uniform, boots, gloves, helmet, other clothing-type items, 
individual weapon, and weapon-related accessories (suppressors, scopes, 
etc.); 

 
3. Fuel for agency vehicles used to transport a Team Member to/from a call 

out; 
 

4. Damage, including wear and tear, on agency-owned vehicles (e.g., patrol 
cars). 

 
C. Training Costs:  Costs for SWAT-specific training for Team Members shall be borne 

by the Signatory Agency employing the Team Member. 
 
D. Consumables Used During a Callout:  Each Signatory Agency shall supply its own 

consumables, including ammunition and first aid supplies.   
 
E. Annual Report: Mason County shall provide an annual report of all SWAT activities 

during a calendar year to each Signatory Agency by April 1 of the following calendar 
year.  This report shall include the following: 

 
1. A tabulation of the number and nature of call outs; and 

 
2. A tabulation of the personnel and respective jurisdiction at each call out; 

and 
 



 

Page 5 of 8 
 

3. A summary of any policy changes and the inclusion of a copy of the signed 
policy. 

 
Section 7.  Claims and Liability 
 
Each Signatory Agency shall be responsible for the wrongful or negligent actions of its 
employees while assigned to the SWAT team as its respective liability shall be determined 
under the laws of the State of Washington and/or Federal Law.  This agreement is not 
intended to diminish or expand such liability.  To that end, each Signatory Agency agree to 
defend, indemnify, hold harmless and release all the other participating Signatory Agencies 
from any loss, claim or liability arising from or out of the negligent tortious actions or 
inactions of its employees, officers and officials.  Such liability shall be apportioned among 
the parties or other at fault persons or entities in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington.  Nothing herein shall be interpreted to:  (a) waive any defense arising out of 
RCW Title 51; (b) limit the ability of a participant to exercise any right, defense, or remedy 
which a party may have with respect to third parties or the officer(s) whose action or 
inaction give rise to loss, claim or liability including but not limited to an assertion that the 
officer(s) was acting beyond the scope of his or her employment; or (c) cover or require 
indemnification or payment of any judgment against any individual or city for intentionally 
wrongful conduct outside the scope of employment of any individual or for any judgment 
for punitive damages against any individual or city.  Payment of punitive damage awards, 
fines or sanctions shall be the sole responsibility of the individual against whom said 
judgment is rendered and/or his or her municipal employer, should that employer elect to 
make said payment voluntarily.  This agreement does not require indemnification of any 
punitive damage awards or for any order imposing fines or sanctions. 

Section 8. Insurance Coverage:   

The Signatory Agencies shall, to the best of their ability, coordinate their liability insurance 
coverages and/or self-insured coverages to the extent possible to fully implement and 
follow the agreement set forth herein.  To that purpose, for the duration of this agreement 
each Signatory Agency shall maintain occurrence based general and police professional 
liability insurance or self-insurance coverage with a limit of not less than ten million dollars 
($10,000,000) per occurrence.  However, the consent of any liability insurance carrier or 
self-insured pool or organization is not required to make this agreement effective as 
between the member cities signing this agreement and the failure of any insurance carrier 
or self-insured pool or organization to agree or follow the terms of this provision on liability 
shall not relieve any individual city from its obligations under this agreement.  

Section 9.  Employment 
 



 

Page 6 of 8 
 

Except as provided herein, all public safety personnel are deemed to be continuing 
employment for their respective employers when activated as members of the SWAT 
team.  Each Signatory Agency shall be solely and exclusively responsible for the 
compensation and benefits for those personnel.  All rights, duties, and obligations of the 
employer and the employee shall remain with that Signatory Agency. Each Signatory 
Agency shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with all applicable laws regarding 
employees, and with provisions on any applicable collective bargaining agreements and 
civil service rules and regulations and its own disciplinary policies and procedures. 
 
Section 10.  Press Releases 
 
Mason County shall handle press releases relating to SWAT team activities only through 
the Primary Responsible Agency in an effort to fully and fairly acknowledge the 
contributions of participating agencies and with due regard for the integrity of the 
operations and the safety of officers. 
 
Section 11.   Authorized Staff 
 
The Signatory Agencies to this agreement shall provide the names and phone numbers of 
staff who have the authority to commit manpower and/or equipment to any SWAT call 
out or activity. 
 
Section 12.  Injury Benefits 
 
Whenever any commissioned officer of a Signatory Agency is injured while acting pursuant 
to this agreement, even though such injury may have occurred while the officer was under 
the direction of a Signatory Agency which was not the employer of the injured officer at 
the time of such injury, such officer and/or his/her dependents shall receive from that 
Officer’s employer the same benefits which such officer would have received had said 
officer been acting under the immediate direction of said officer's employer and within 
said employer's jurisdiction. 
 
Section 13.  Severability 
 
Should any clause, phrase, sentence or paragraph of the Agreement or its application to 
any party or circumstance be declared invalid or void by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
the remaining provisions of this Agreement and/or their application to other parties and 
circumstances, not declared invalid or void, shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 14.  Term 
 
The minimum term of this Agreement shall be one (1) year, effective upon its adoption by 
all Signatory Agencies.  This Agreement shall automatically extend for consecutive one (1) 
year terms without action of the legislative bodies of the Signatory Agency jurisdictions, 
unless and until terminated pursuant to the terms of this agreement. 



 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 
Section 15.  Termination 
 
Any Signatory Agency may withdraw from and terminate participation in under this 
Agreement upon the giving of thirty (30) calendar days advance written notice of intent to 
withdraw/terminate to the other Signatory Agencies herein. Termination of this 
Agreement and/or withdrawal of an agency shall not terminate the indemnity or liability 
of that agency with respect to any incident arising prior to the withdrawal.  All terms of 
this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement with respect to any cause 
of action, claim or liability arising on or prior to the date of termination. 
 
In the event that Signatory Agency withdraws from and terminates participation under this 
Agreement, property that was provided by that Signatory Agency and was used and/or in 
the possession of the SWAT Team pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
including but not limited to vehicles, equipment, firearms, ammunition and explosives, 
shall belong to and shall be returned to that Signatory Agency. 
 
Section 16.  Contract Administration 
 
Mason County shall be primarily responsible for administering the terms of this 
agreement.  The Signatory Agencies do not, by this Agreement, intend to create any 
separate legal or administrative entity. The Signatory Agencies will cooperatively work 
together to further the intent and purpose of this agreement.  
 
Section 19.  Extent of Agreement 
 
This agreement contains the complete understanding of the Signatory Agencies regarding 
the subject matter of this agreement. 
 
Section 10.  Authorization 
 
By resolution or ordinance or otherwise pursuant to law, the governing bodies of the 
Signatory Agencies listed below have authorized their respective designated officials to 
execute this agreement on their behalf. This agreement may be executed by counterparts 
and if so, shall be deemed valid as if each designated official had signed the original. 
 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 
  



 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 
MASON COUNTY 

   
By:_____________________________  Date:________________ 
Print Name: ______________________     
Title:    

   
 

CITY OF SHELTON 
   

By:_____________________________  Date:________________ 
Print Name: ______________________     
Title: City Manager   

 
 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G2) 

Touch Date: 01/28/20 
Brief Date:       03/03/20 
Action Date:  03/17/20 

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By: Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Downtown Connector Final    
  Acceptance 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Downtown Connector Final 

Acceptance Form   
- Before and after photos 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
On May 1, 2018, the Commission awarded Waunch Construction & Trucking, Inc. a $4,334,002.86 Contract for 
construction of the Downtown Connector Project. This project provided for the revitalization of Olympic Highway 
North/Alder Street between East C Street and North 1st Street. The restoration included new asphalt streets, 
installation of a roundabout at the 1st and Alder intersection, installation of a new traffic signal system at the 
Alder Street/North 7th Street intersection, replacement of existing sidewalk and curb ramps along W. Alder 
Street with ADA-compliant sidewalk and curb ramps, installation of a new bus stop shelter, Rapid Flashing 
Beacons, a new rain garden, a multiuse path along Olympic Hwy North, replacement of sanitary sewer 
manholes, and installation of stormwater treatment vaults and replacement of catch basins. The contract 
provided 240 working days to complete the improvements, which the Contractor completed in 236 working 
days. 
This project would not have been as successful without the assistance of our partners: Mason Conservation 
District for their initiation and assistance with the design of the rain garden, PUD 3 for providing the mast arms 
and light fixtures, as well as installing the decorative light poles, and Mason Transit Authority for providing the 
bus shelter structure and funding the construction of the bus pullout.  

  
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  

The Contract was awarded for $4,334,002.86. After three change orders and various cost overruns, the final 
amount to be paid to Waunch Construction and Trucking, after taxes and retainage, will be $4,785,862.79. We 
were awarded two grants to assist in paying for the construction of this project, a $3,489,152 TIB Grant and 
$1,000,000 2018 State Appropriation in the Transportation Budget, additionally, MTA paid $96,398 for the 
construction of the bus shelter. The remaining $251,547.14 will be paid out of the street and storm utilities. 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to accept the Downtown Connector Project and authorize the Mayor to sign the 

Final Acceptance Form”.   



CAPITAL PROJECT  
FINAL ACCEPTANCE FORM 

 
 
 
Project: Downtown Connector 
 
Contractor:   Waunch Construction and Trucking, Inc. 
 
Date awarded:  September 3, 2019  
 
Amount of the contract:  $ 4,334,002.84 
 
Final Amount Paid: $ 4,785,862.79 
 
Description of work performed:  This project provided for the revitalization of Olympic 
Highway North/Alder Street between East C Street and North 1st Street. The restoration included 
new asphalt streets, installation of a roundabout at the 1st and Alder intersection, installation of a 
new traffic signal system at the Alder Street/North 7th Street intersection, replacement of existing 
sidewalk and curb ramps along W. Alder Street with ADA-compliant sidewalk and curb ramps, 
installation of a new bus stop shelter, Rapid Flashing Beacons, a new rain garden, a multi-modal 
pedestrian path along Olympic Hwy North, replacement of sanitary sewer manholes, and 
installation of stormwater treatment vaults and replacement of catch basins. 

 
 
Authorizing signatures: 
 
 
              
Mayor Dorcy       Date 
 
 
Attest: 
 
              
City Clerk Nault      Date 



1st/Alder Intersection Before 1st/Alder Intersection After



4th/Alder Before 4th/Alder After



Olympic Hwy North/B Street Before Olympic Hwy North/B Street After



Downtown Connector Project
Ribbon Cutting Ceremony

August 2, 2019



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G3) 

Touch Date: 02/11/20 
Brief Date:       03/03/20 
Action Date:  03/17/20 

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By: Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  DOC Grant Acceptance for Civic      
  Center Parking Lot 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- DOC Contract No. 20-96627-226   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

In June of 2019, the City received notification of award of $283,000 in state grant funding from the 2019-2021 
Capital Budget for the Civic Center Parking Lot. Following notice of the award and utilizing the City’s On-Call 
Engineering Contract, staff assigned a work order to TranspoGroup for design efforts of the redevelopment of 
the Civic Center Parking Lot. 

City staff has been working with the Department of Commerce to define the scope of work for the grant 
documents and asks the Council accept the grant for the design and construction of the Civic Center Parking 
Lot. 
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 

   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  

$283,000 was awarded through the state Capital Budget. The grant amount is for $277,340, which is the 
amount remaining after the Dept. of Commerce’s 2% administrative fee.   
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information for this can be obtained through the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to accept the Direct Appropriation Grant for the Civic Center Parking Lot by 

authorizing the Mayor to sign the Funding Agreement with the Department of Commerce”.   



 

 

 

 

 

Washington State Department of Commerce 
www.commerce.wa.gov 

 
 

 
Grant to 

City of Shelton 
through 

 
The Local and Community Projects Program 

 
 
 
For 

Shelton Civic Center Parking Lot 
 
 
 
Start date:  July 1, 2019 
 
 



 

 

 



 

i 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
FACE SHEET ................................................................................................................................................ 2 
DECLARATIONS .......................................................................................................................................... 4 
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS ......................................................................................................... 6 

1. GRANT MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................................... 6 
2. COMPENSATION ............................................................................................................................. 6 
3. CERTIFICATION OF FUNDS PERFORMANCE MEASURES ......................................................... 6 
4. PREVAILING WAGE LAW ................................................................................................................ 7 
5. DOCUMENTATION AND SECURITY .............................................................................................. 7 
6. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING REAL PROPERTY VALUES FOR ACQUISITIONS OF REAL 
PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURES ............................................................................................ 7 
7. EXPENDITURES ELIGIBLE FOR REIMBURSEMENT .................................................................... 7 
8. BILLING PROCEDURES AND PAYMENT ....................................................................................... 8 
9. SUBCONTRACTOR DATA COLLECTION ....................................................................................... 9 
10. CERTIFIED PROJECT COMPLETION REPORT AND FINAL PAYMENT ...................................... 9 
11. INSURANCE ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
12. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE ........................................................................................................... 11 
13. REDUCTION IN FUNDS ................................................................................................................. 11 
14. OWNERSHIP OF PROJECT/CAPITAL FACILITIES ...................................................................... 11 
15. CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP OR USE FOR GRANTEE-OWNED PROPERTY ............................. 11 
16. CHANGE OF USE FOR LEASED PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURE ............................. 12 
17. SIGNAGE, MARKERS AND PUBLICATIONS ................................................................................ 12 
18. HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL ARTIFACTS ................................................................................. 12 
19. REAPPROPRIATION ...................................................................................................................... 13 
20. TERMINATION FOR FRAUD OR MISREPRESENTATION .......................................................... 13 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS ..................................................................................................... 14 
21. DEFINITIONS.................................................................................................................................. 14 
22. ACCESS TO DATA ......................................................................................................................... 14 
23. ADVANCE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED ........................................................................................... 14 
24. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN .......................................................................................... 14 
25. AMENDMENTS ............................................................................................................................... 14 
26. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) OF 1990, PUBLIC LAW 101-336, ALSO 
REFERRED TO AS THE “ADA” 28 CFR PART 35 ................................................................................ 15 
27. ASSIGNMENT................................................................................................................................. 15 
28. ATTORNEYS’ FEES ....................................................................................................................... 15 
29. AUDIT .............................................................................................................................................. 15 
30. CONFIDENTIALITY/SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION .......................................................... 16 
31. CONFLICT OF INTEREST ............................................................................................................. 16 
32. COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS ........................................................................................................... 17 
33. DISPUTES ...................................................................................................................................... 17 
34. DUPLICATE PAYMENT .................................................................................................................. 18 



 

ii 

35. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE ................................................................................................... 18 
36. INDEMNIFICATION ........................................................................................................................ 18 
37. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE GRANTEE ........................................................................... 18 
38. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE ....................................................................................... 18 
39. LAWS .............................................................................................................................................. 18 
40. LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION................................................................. 18 
41. LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY ........................................................................................................ 19 
42. NONCOMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS ............................................................ 19 
43. PAY EQUITY ................................................................................................................................... 19 
44. POLITICAL ACTIVITIES ................................................................................................................. 19 
45. PUBLICITY ...................................................................................................................................... 19 
46. RECAPTURE .................................................................................................................................. 19 
47. RECORDS MAINTENANCE ........................................................................................................... 20 
48. REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE................................................................. 20 
49. RIGHT OF INSPECTION ................................................................................................................ 20 
50. SAVINGS ........................................................................................................................................ 20 
51. SEVERABILITY ............................................................................................................................... 20 
52. SITE SECURITY ............................................................................................................................. 20 
53. SUBGRANTING/SUBCONTRACTING ........................................................................................... 20 
54. SURVIVAL ....................................................................................................................................... 21 
55. TAXES ............................................................................................................................................. 21 
56. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE ......................................................................................................... 21 
57. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE ........................................................................................... 21 
58. TERMINATION PROCEDURES ..................................................................................................... 21 
59. TREATMENT OF ASSETS ............................................................................................................. 22 
60. WAIVER .......................................................................................................................................... 22 

ATTACHMENT A - SCOPE OF WORK ...................................................................................................... 24 
ATTACHMENT B - CERTIFICATION OF THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS TO COMPLETE THE 
PROJECT.................................................................................................................................................... 26 
ATTACHMENT C- CERTIFICATION OF THE PAYMENT AND REPORTING OF PREVAILING WAGES
 .................................................................................................................................................................... 28 
ATTACHMENT D - CERTIFICATION OF INTENT TO ENTER THELEADERSHIP IN ENERGY AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN (LEED) CERTIFICATION PROCESS .......................................................... 30 
 
 
 
 



 
 

1 

 

  



 

2 

FACE SHEET 
 

Grant Number: 20-96627-226 
Project Name: Shelton Civic Center Parking Lot 

 
Washington State Department of Commerce 

Local Government Division 
Community Assistance and Research Unit 

 
1. GRANTEE 2. GRANTEE Doing Business As (optional) 
City of Shelton 
525 West Cota Street 
Shelton, WA 98584 

N/A 
 

3. GRANTEE Representative 4. COMMERCE Representative 
Ken Gill, City Engineer 
(360) 432-5144 
KGill@ci.shelton.wa.us 
 
 

Karma Shannon♥Lawson, Grant Manager 
PO Box 42525, Olympia, WA 98504 
(360) 810-0185 
Karma.ShannonLawson@commerce.wa.gov 
 

5. Grant Amount 6. Funding Source 7. Start Date 8. End Date 
$277,340.00 Federal:   State:X   Other:   N/A:  July 1, 2019 June 30, 2023  

(subject to reappropriation) 
9. Federal Funds (as applicable) 
N/A 

Federal Agency   
N/A 

CFDA Number  
N/A 

10. Tax ID # 11. SWV # 12. UBI # 13. DUNS # 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXX SWV0013140-00 252000085 021830666 
14. Grant Purpose 
The outcome of this performance-based Grant Agreement is to undertake a legislatively approved project that furthers the 
goals and objectives of Washington State Direct Appropriations Program as referenced in Attachment A – Scope of Work. 
 
COMMERCE, defined as the Washington State Department of Commerce, and the GRANTEE, as defined above, 
acknowledge and accept the terms of this Grant and attachments and have executed this Grant on the date below to start 
as of the date and year referenced above.  The rights and obligations of both parties to this Grant are governed by this 
Grant and the following other documents incorporated by reference:  Grant Terms and Conditions including Attachment 
“A” – Scope of Work, Attachment “B” – Certification of Availability of Funds to Complete the Project, Attachment “C” – 
Certification of the Payment and Reporting of Prevailing Wages, Attachment “D” – Certification of Intent to Enter LEED 
Process.  
 
FOR GRANTEE FOR COMMERCE 
 
 
  
Signature 
 
  
Print Name 
 
  
Title 
 
  
Date 

 
 
  
Mark K. Barkley, Assistant Director 
Local Government Division 
 
  
Date 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
  
Luke Eaton, Assistant Attorney General 
8/13/2019 
  
Date 

 
 

mailto:KGill@ci.shelton.wa.us
mailto:Karma.ShannonLawson@commerce.wa.gov


 

3 

 
 

  



 

4 

 

 
DECLARATIONS 

 
GRANTEE INFORMATION 
  
GRANTEE Name: City of Shelton 
Grant Number: 20-96627-226 
State Wide Vendor Number:  SWV0013140-00 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
  
Project Name: Shelton Civic Center Parking Lot 
Project City:  Shelton 
Project State: Washington 
Project Zip Code:  98584 
 
GRANT AGREEMENT INFORMATION 
 
Grant Amount: $277,340.00 
Appropriation Number: SHB 1102 SL Section 1042 (2019 Regular 

Session) 
Re-appropriation Number (if applicable): N/A 
Grant End Date: June 30, 2023 (subject to reappropriation) 
Biennium: 2019-2021  
Biennium Close Date: June 30, 2021 
Earliest Date for Construction Reimbursement:  July 1, 2016 
  
ADDITIONAL SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS GOVERNING THIS AGREEMENT 
 
N/A 
 

  



 

 5 

  



 

 6 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GENERAL GRANT 

STATE FUNDS 
 

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT, entered into by and between the GRANTEE and COMMERCE, as defined 
on the Face Sheet of this Grant Agreement, WITNESSES THAT: 
 
 WHEREAS, COMMERCE has the statutory authority under RCW 43.330.050 (5) to cooperate 

with and provide assistance to local governments, businesses, and community-based 
organizations; and 

 
 WHEREAS, COMMERCE is also given the responsibility to administer state funds and programs 

which are assigned to COMMERCE by the Governor or the Washington State Legislature; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature has made an appropriation to support the Local 

and Community Projects Program, and directed COMMERCE to administer those funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the enabling legislation also stipulates that the GRANTEE is eligible to receive 

funding for design, acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation (a venture hereinafter referred to as 
the “Project”). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of covenants, conditions, performances, and promises hereinafter 
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. GRANT MANAGEMENT 

The Representative for each of the parties shall be responsible for and shall be the contact person for 
all communications and billings regarding the performance of this Grant.  

The Representative for COMMERCE and their contact information are identified on the Face 
Sheet of this Grant. 
The Representative for the GRANTEE and their contact information are identified on the Face 
Sheet of this Grant. 
 

2. COMPENSATION 
COMMERCE shall pay an amount not to exceed the awarded Grant Amount as shown on the Face 
Sheet of this Grant Agreement, for the capital costs necessary for or incidental to the performance of 
work as set forth in the Scope of Work.   

 
3. CERTIFICATION OF FUNDS PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

A. The release of state funds under this Grant Agreement is contingent upon the GRANTEE 
certifying that it has expended or has access to funds from non-state sources as set forth in 
ATTACHMENT B (CERTIFICATION OF THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS TO COMPLETE THE 
PROJECT), hereof.  Such non-state sources may consist of a combination of any of the following: 
i) Eligible Project expenditures prior to the execution of this Grant Agreement. 
ii) Cash dedicated to the Project. 
iii) Funds available through a letter of credit or other binding loan commitment(s). 
iv) Pledges from foundations or corporations. 
v) Pledges from individual donors. 
vi) The value of real property when acquired solely for the purposes of this Project, as 

established and evidenced by a current market value appraisal performed by a licensed, 
professional real estate appraiser, or a current property tax statement.  COMMERCE will 
not consider appraisals for prospective values of such property for the purposes of 
calculating the amount of non-state matching fund credit. 

vii) In-kind contributions, subject to COMMERCE’S approval.  



 

 7 

B. The GRANTEE shall maintain records sufficient to evidence that it has access to or has 
expended funds from such non-state sources, and shall make such records available for 
COMMERCE’s review upon reasonable request. 

 
4. PREVAILING WAGE LAW 

The Project funded under this Grant may be subject to state prevailing wage law (Chapter 39.12 
RCW).  The GRANTEE is advised to consult the Industrial Statistician at the Washington Department 
of Labor and Industries to determine whether prevailing wages must be paid.  COMMERCE is not 
responsible for determining whether prevailing wage applies to this Project or for any prevailing wage 
payments that may be required by law. 

 
5. DOCUMENTATION AND SECURITY 

The provisions of this section shall apply to capital projects performed by nonprofit organizations that 
involve the expenditure of over $500,000 in state funds.  Projects for which the grant award or 
legislative intent documents specify that the state funding is to be used for design only are exempt 
from this section. 
A. Deed of Trust.  This Grant shall be evidenced by a promissory note and secured by a deed of 

trust or other appropriate security instrument in favor of COMMERCE (the “Deed of Trust”).  The 
Deed of Trust shall be recorded in the County where the Project is located, and the original 
returned to COMMERCE after recordation within ninety (90) days of Grant Agreement execution.  
The Deed of Trust must be recorded before COMMERCE will reimburse the GRANTEE for any 
Project costs.  The amount secured by the Deed of Trust shall be the amount of the Grant as set 
forth on the Face Sheet, hereof. 

B. Term of Deed of Trust.  The Deed of Trust shall remain in full force and effect for a period of ten 
(10) years following the final payment of state funds to the GRANTEE under this grant.  Upon 
satisfaction of the ten-year term requirement and all other grant terms and conditions, 
COMMERCE shall, upon written request of the GRANTEE, take appropriate action to reconvey 
the Deed of Trust. 

C. Title Insurance.  The GRANTEE shall purchase an extended coverage lender’s policy of title 
insurance insuring the lien position of the Deed of Trust in an amount not less than the amount of 
the grant. 

D. Subordination.  COMMERCE may agree to subordinate its deed of trust upon request from a 
private or public lender.  Any such request shall be submitted to COMMERCE in writing, and 
COMMERCE shall respond to the request in writing within thirty (30) days of receiving the 
request.  

 
6. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING REAL PROPERTY VALUES FOR ACQUISITIONS OF REAL 

PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
When the grant is used to fund the acquisition of real property, the value of the real property 
eligible for reimbursement under this grant shall be established as follows: 

A. GRANTEE purchases of real property from an independent third-party seller shall be evidenced 
by a current appraisal prepared by a licensed Washington State commercial real estate 
appraiser, or a current property tax statement. 

B. GRANTEE purchases of real property from a subsidiary organization, such as an affiliated LLC, 
shall be evidenced by a current appraisal prepared by a licensed Washington State commercial 
real estate appraiser or the prior purchase price of the property plus holding costs, whichever is 
less. 

 
7. EXPENDITURES ELIGIBLE FOR REIMBURSEMENT  

Payments to the Grantee shall be made on a reimbursement basis only. Costs incurred on or after 
the EARLIEST DATE FOR CONSTRUCTION REIMBURSEMENT as shown on the Declarations 
page are eligible for reimbursement under this Grant Agreement. The GRANTEE may be reimbursed 
for the following eligible costs related to the activities identified in the SCOPE OF WORK shown on 
Attachment A.  

 



 

 8 

A. Real property, and costs directly associated with such purchase, when purchased or acquired 
solely for the purposes of the Project; 

B. Design, engineering, architectural, and planning; 
C. Construction management and observation (from external sources only); 
D. Construction costs including, but not limited to, the following: 
  Site preparation and improvements; 
  Permits and fees; 
  Labor and materials; 
  Taxes on Project goods and services; 
  Capitalized equipment; 
  Information technology infrastructure; and 
  Landscaping. 
E. Other costs authorized through the legislation 

 
8. BILLING PROCEDURES AND PAYMENT  

COMMERCE shall reimburse the GRANTEE for eligible Project expenditures, up to the maximum 
payable under this Grant Agreement.  When requesting reimbursement for expenditures made, the 
GRANTEE shall submit to COMMERCE a signed and completed Invoice Voucher (Form A-19), that 
documents capitalized Project activity performed for the billing period. The GRANTEE can submit all 
Invoice Vouchers and any required documentation electronically through COMMERCE’s Contracts 
Management System (CMS), which is available through the Secure Access Washington (SAW) 
portal. 
 
The GRANTEE shall evidence the costs claimed on each voucher by including copies of each invoice 
received from vendors providing Project goods or services covered by the Grant Agreement.  The 
GRANTEE shall also provide COMMERCE with a copy of the cancelled check or electronic funds 
transfer, as applicable, that confirms that they have paid each expenditure being claimed.  The 
cancelled checks or electronic funds transfers may be submitted to COMMERCE at the time the 
voucher is initially submitted, or within thirty (30) days thereafter. 
 
The voucher must be certified (signed) by an official of the GRANTEE with authority to bind the 
GRANTEE.  The final voucher shall be submitted to COMMERCE within sixty (60) days following the 
completion of work or other termination of this Grant Agreement, or within fifteen (15) days following 
the end of the state biennium unless Grant Agreement funds are reappropriated by the Legislature in 
accordance with Section 19, hereof. 
 
Each request for payment must be accompanied by a Project Status Report, which describes, in 
narrative form, the progress made on the Project since the last invoice was submitted, as well as a 
report of Project status to date.  COMMERCE will not release payment for any reimbursement 
request received unless and until the Project Status Report is received.  After approving the Invoice 
Voucher and Project Status Report, COMMERCE shall promptly remit a warrant to the GRANTEE. 
COMMERCE will pay GRANTEE upon acceptance of services provided and receipt of properly 
completed invoices, which shall be submitted to the Representative for COMMERCE not more often 
than monthly. 
 
Payment shall be considered timely if made by COMMERCE within thirty (30) calendar days after 
receipt of properly completed invoices.  Payment shall be sent to the address designated by the 
GRANTEE. 
 
COMMERCE may, in its sole discretion, terminate the Grant or withhold payments claimed by the 
GRANTEE for services rendered if the GRANTEE fails to satisfactorily comply with any term or 
condition of this Grant.   
No payments in advance or in anticipation of services or supplies to be provided under this 
Agreement shall be made by COMMERCE. 

   



 

 9 

Duplication of Billed Costs 
The GRANTEE shall not bill COMMERCE for services performed under this Grant Agreement, and 
COMMERCE shall not pay the GRANTEE, if the GRANTEE is entitled to payment or has been or will 
be paid by any other source, including grants, for that service. 
 

 Disallowed Costs 
The GRANTEE is responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by its own 
organization or that of its subgrantees. 
 

9. SUBCONTRACTOR DATA COLLECTION 
GRANTEE will submit reports, in a form and format to be provided by COMMERCE and at intervals 
as agreed by the parties, regarding work under this Grant performed by subcontractors and the 
portion of Grant funds expended for work performed by subcontractors, including but not necessarily 
limited to minority-owned, woman-owned, and veteran-owned business subcontractors. 
“Subcontractors” shall mean subcontractors of any tier. 
 

10. CERTIFIED PROJECT COMPLETION REPORT AND FINAL PAYMENT 
The GRANTEE shall complete a Certified Project Completion Report when activities identified in the 
SCOPE OF WORK shown on Attachment A are complete.  
 
The GRANTEE shall provide the following information to COMMERCE: 
A. A certified statement that the Project, as described in the SCOPE OF WORK shown on Attachment 

A, is complete and, if applicable, meets required standards. 
B. A certified statement of the actual dollar amounts spent, from all funding sources, in completing the 

project as described in the SCOPE OF WORK shown on Attachment A. 
C. Certification that all costs associated with the Project have been incurred and accounted for.  Costs 

are incurred when goods and services are received and/or Grant work is performed. 
D. A final voucher for the remaining eligible funds, including any required documentation.   
 
The GRANTEE will submit the Certified Project Completion Report together with the last Invoice 
Voucher for a sum not to exceed the balance of the Grant Amount. 

 
11. INSURANCE 

The GRANTEE shall provide insurance coverage as set out in this section. The intent of the required 
insurance is to protect the state of Washington should there be any claims, suits, actions, costs, 
damages or expenses arising from any loss, or negligent or intentional act or omission of the 
GRANTEE, or Subgrantee, or agents of either, while performing under the terms of this Grant. 
 
The insurance required shall be issued by an insurance company authorized to do business within 
the state of Washington. Except for Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Insurance, the 
insurance shall name the state of Washington, its agents, officers, and employees as additional 
insureds under the insurance policy. All policies shall be primary to any other valid and collectable 
insurance. The GRANTEE shall instruct the insurers to give COMMERCE thirty (30) calendar days 
advance notice of any insurance cancellation or modification. 
 
The GRANTEE shall submit to COMMERCE within fifteen (15) calendar days of the Grant start date, 
a certificate of insurance which outlines the coverage and limits defined in this insurance section. 
During the term of the Grant, the GRANTEE shall submit renewal certificates not less than thirty (30) 
calendar days prior to expiration of each policy required under this section. 
The GRANTEE shall provide insurance coverage that shall be maintained in full force and effect 
during the term of this Grant, as follows: 
 
Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy.  Provide a Commercial General Liability Insurance 
Policy, including contractual liability, written on an occurrence basis, in adequate quantity to protect 
against legal liability arising out of Grant activity but no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 



 

 10 

Additionally, the GRANTEE is responsible for ensuring that any Subgrantee/subcontractor provide 
adequate insurance coverage for the activities arising out of subgrants/subcontracts. 
 
Automobile Liability. In the event that performance pursuant to this Grant involves the use of 
vehicles, owned or operated by the GRANTEE or its Subgrantee/subcontractor, automobile liability 
insurance shall be required. The minimum limit for automobile liability is $1,000,000 per occurrence, 
using a Combined Single Limit for bodily injury and property damage. 
 
Professional Liability, Errors and Omissions Insurance. The GRANTEE shall maintain 
Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Insurance. The GRANTEE shall maintain minimum 
limits of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence to cover all activities by the GRANTEE and licensed 
staff employed or under contract to the GRANTEE. The state of Washington, its agents, officers, and 
employees need not be named as additional insureds under this policy. 
 
Fidelity Insurance.  Every officer, director, employee, or agent who is authorized to act on behalf of 
the GRANTEE for the purpose of receiving or depositing funds into program accounts or issuing 
financial documents, checks, or other instruments of payment for program costs shall be insured to 
provide protection against loss: 
A. The amount of fidelity coverage secured pursuant to this Grant shall be $2,000,000 or the highest 

of planned reimbursement for the Grant period, whichever is lowest.  Fidelity insurance secured 
pursuant to this paragraph shall name COMMERCE as beneficiary. 

B. Subgrantees/subcontractors that receive $10,000 or more per year in funding through this Grant 
shall secure fidelity insurance as noted above.  Fidelity insurance secured by 
Subgrantees/subcontractors pursuant to this paragraph shall name the GRANTEE and the 
GRANTEE’s fiscal agent as beneficiary.  

C. The GRANTEE shall provide, at COMMERCE’s request, copies of insurance instruments or 
certifications from the insurance issuing agency.  The copies or certifications shall show the 
insurance coverage, the designated beneficiary, who is covered, the amounts, the period of 
coverage, and that COMMERCE will be provided thirty (30) days advance written notice of 
cancellation.  

 
GRANTEES and Local Governments that Participate in a Self-Insurance Program. 
Self-Insured/Liability Pool or Self-Insured Risk Management Program – With prior approval from 
COMMERCE, the GRANTEE may provide the coverage above under a self-insured/liability pool or 
self-insured risk management program.  In order to obtain permission from COMMERCE, the 
GRANTEE shall provide: (1) a description of its self-insurance program, and (2) a certificate and/or 
letter of coverage that outlines coverage limits and deductibles.  All self-insured risk management 
programs or self-insured/liability pool financial reports must comply with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and adhere to accounting standards promulgated by: 1) Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), 2) Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), and 3) the 
Washington State Auditor’s annual instructions for financial reporting.  GRANTEE’s participating in 
joint risk pools shall maintain sufficient documentation to support the aggregate claim liability 
information reported on the balance sheet.  The state of Washington, its agents, and employees need 
not be named as additional insured under a self-insured property/liability pool, if the pool is prohibited 
from naming third parties as additional insured. 
 
GRANTEE shall provide annually to COMMERCE a summary of coverages and a letter of self 
insurance, evidencing continued coverage under GRANTEE’s self-insured/liability pool or self-insured 
risk management program.  Such annual summary of coverage and letter of self insurance will be 
provided on the anniversary of the start date of this Agreement. 

  



 

 11 

 
12. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

In the event of an inconsistency in this Grant, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving 
precedence in the following order:  

 Applicable federal and state of Washington statutes and regulations 
 Declarations page of this Grant Agreement 
 Special Terms and Conditions  
 General Terms and Conditions 
 Attachment A – Scope of Work 
 Attachment B – Certification of the Availability of Funds to Complete the Project 
 Attachment C – Certification of the Payment and Reporting of Prevailing Wages 
 Attachment D – Certification of Intent to Enter the Leadership in Energy and Environmental 

Design (LEED) Certification Process 
 

13. REDUCTION IN FUNDS 
In the event state funds appropriated for the work contemplated under this Grant Agreement are 
withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way by the Governor or the Washington State Legislature during 
the Grant Agreement period, the parties hereto shall be bound by any such revised funding limitations 
as implemented at the discretion of COMMERCE, and shall meet and renegotiate the Grant 
Agreement accordingly. 

 
14. OWNERSHIP OF PROJECT/CAPITAL FACILITIES 

COMMERCE makes no claim to any real property improved or constructed with funds awarded under 
this Grant Agreement and does not assert and will not acquire any ownership interest in or title to the 
capital facilities and/or equipment constructed or purchased with state funds under this Grant 
Agreement; provided, however, that COMMERCE may be granted a security interest in real property, 
to secure funds awarded under this Grant Agreement.  This provision does not extend to claims that 
COMMERCE may bring against the GRANTEE in recapturing funds expended in violation of this 
Grant Agreement. 

 
15. CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP OR USE FOR GRANTEE-OWNED PROPERTY  

A. The GRANTEE understands and agrees that any and all real property or facilities owned by the 
GRANTEE that are acquired, constructed, or otherwise improved by the GRANTEE using state 
funds under this Grant Agreement, shall be held and used by the GRANTEE for the purpose or 
purposes stated elsewhere in this Grant Agreement for a period of at least ten (10) years from the 
date the final payment is made hereunder. 

B. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit the GRANTEE from selling any property or 
properties described in this section; Provided, that any such sale shall be subject to prior review 
and approval by COMMERCE, and that all proceeds from such sale shall be applied to the 
purchase price of a different facility or facilities of equal or greater value than the original facility 
and that any such new facility or facilities will be used for the purpose or purposes stated 
elsewhere in this Grant Agreement.   

C. In the event the GRANTEE is found to be out of compliance with this section, the GRANTEE shall 
repay to the state general fund the principal amount of the grant as stated on the Face Sheet, 
hereof, plus interest calculated at the rate of interest on state of Washington general obligation 
bonds issued most closely to the effective date of the legislation in which the subject facility was 
authorized.  Repayment shall be made pursuant to Section 46 (Recapture provision). 

  



 

 12 

16. CHANGE OF USE FOR LEASED PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
A. The GRANTEE understands and agrees that any facility leased by the GRANTEE that is 

constructed, renovated, or otherwise improved using state funds under this Grant Agreement 
shall be used by the GRANTEE for the purpose or purposes stated elsewhere in this Grant 
Agreement for a period of at least ten (10) years from the date the final payment is made 
hereunder. 

B. In the event the GRANTEE is found to be out of compliance with this section, the GRANTEE shall 
repay to the state general fund the principal amount of the grant as stated on the Face Sheet, 
hereof, plus interest calculated at the rate of interest on state of Washington general obligation 
bonds issued most closely to the effective date of the legislation in which the subject facility was 
authorized.  Repayment shall be made pursuant to Section 46 (Recapture Provision). 
 

17. SIGNAGE, MARKERS AND PUBLICATIONS 
If, during the period covered by this Grant Agreement, the GRANTEE displays or circulates any 
communication, publication, or donor recognition identifying the financial participants in the Project, 
any such communication or publication must identify “The Taxpayers of Washington State” as a 
participant. 

 
18. HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL ARTIFACTS  

Prior to approval and disbursement of any funds awarded under this Grant Agreement, GRANTEE 
shall complete the requirements of Governor’s Executive Order 05-05, where applicable, or 
GRANTEE shall complete a review under Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, if 
applicable. GRANTEE agrees that the GRANTEE is legally and financially responsible for compliance 
with all laws, regulations, and agreements related to the preservation of historical or cultural 
resources and agrees to hold harmless COMMERCE and the state of Washington in relation to any 
claim related to such historical or cultural resources discovered, disturbed, or damaged as a result of 
the project funded by this Grant Agreement. 
 
In addition to the requirements set forth in this Grant Agreement, GRANTEE shall, in accordance with 
Governor’s Executive Order 05-05, coordinate with COMMERCE and the Washington State 
Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (“DAHP”), including any recommended 
consultation with any affected tribe(s), during Project design and prior to construction to determine the 
existence of any tribal cultural resources affected by the Project.  GRANTEE agrees to avoid, 
minimize, or mitigate impacts to the cultural resource as a continuing prerequisite to receipt of funds 
under this Grant Agreement. 
 
The GRANTEE agrees that, unless the GRANTEE is proceeding under an approved historical and 
cultural monitoring plan or other memorandum of agreement, if historical or cultural artifacts are 
discovered during construction, the GRANTEE shall immediately stop construction and notify the 
local historical preservation officer and the state's historical preservation officer at DAHP, and the 
COMMERCE Representative identified on the Face Sheet. If human remains are uncovered, the 
GRANTEE shall report the presence and location of the remains to the coroner and local enforcement 
immediately, then contact DAHP and the concerned tribe's cultural staff or committee. 
 
The GRANTEE shall require this provision to be contained in all subcontracts for work or services 
related to the Scope of Work attached hereto. 
 
In addition to the requirements set forth in this Grant Agreement, GRANTEE agrees to comply with 
RCW 27.44 regarding Indian Graves and Records; RCW 27.53 regarding Archaeological Sites and 
Resources; RCW 68.60 regarding Abandoned and Historic Cemeteries and Historic Graves; and 
WAC 25-48 regarding Archaeological Excavation and Removal Permits. 
 
Completion of the requirements of Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act shall 
substitute for completion of Governor’s Executive Order 05-05. 
 



 

 13 

In the event that the GRANTEE finds it necessary to amend the Scope of Work the GRANTEE may 
be required to re-comply with Governor's Executive Order 05-05 or Section 106 of the National 
Historic Preservation Act. 

 
19. REAPPROPRIATION 

A. The parties hereto understand and agree that any state funds not expended by the BIENNIUM 
CLOSE DATE listed on the Declarations page will lapse on that date unless specifically 
reappropriated by the Washington State Legislature.  If funds are so reappropriated, the state's 
obligation under the terms of this Grant Agreement shall be contingent upon the terms of such 
reappropriation. 

B. In the event any funds awarded under this Grant Agreement are reappropriated for use in a future 
biennium, COMMERCE reserves the right to assign a reasonable share of any such 
reappropriation for administrative costs. 
 

20. TERMINATION FOR FRAUD OR MISREPRESENTATION  
In the event the GRANTEE commits fraud or makes any misrepresentation in connection with the 
Grant application or during the performance of this Grant Agreement, COMMERCE reserves the 
right to terminate or amend this Grant Agreement accordingly, including the right to recapture all 
funds disbursed to the GRANTEE under the Grant. 
 

 



 

 14 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GENERAL GRANT 

STATE FUNDS 
 

21. DEFINITIONS 
As used throughout this Grant, the following terms shall have the meaning set forth below: 
A. “Authorized Representative” shall mean the Director and/or the designee authorized in writing to 

act on the Director’s behalf. 
B. “COMMERCE” shall mean the Department of Commerce. 
C.  "GRANTEE" shall mean the entity identified on the Face Sheet performing service(s) under this 

Grant, and shall include all employees and agents of the GRANTEE. 
D. “Personal Information” shall mean information identifiable to any person, including, but not limited 

to, information that relates to a person’s name, health, finances, education, business, use or 
receipt of governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social 
security numbers, driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial identifiers. 

E. ”State” shall mean the state of Washington. 
F. "Subgrantee/subcontractor" shall mean one not in the employment of the GRANTEE, who is 

performing all or part of those services under this Grant under a separate Grant with the 
GRANTEE.  The terms “subgrantee/subcontractor” refers to any tier. 

G.  “Subrecipient” shall mean a non-federal entity that expends federal awards received from a pass-
through entity to carry out a federal program, but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary 
of such a program. It also excludes vendors that receive federal funds in exchange for goods and/or 
services in the course of normal trade or commerce. 

H. “Vendor” is an entity that agrees to provide the amount and kind of services requested by 
COMMERCE; provides services under the grant only to those beneficiaries individually determined 
to be eligible by COMMERCE and, provides services on a fee-for-service or per-unit basis with 
contractual penalties if the entity fails to meet program performance standards.  

I. “Grant Agreement” or “Agreement” means the entire written agreement between COMMERCE 
and the GRANTEE, including any Attachments, Exhibits, documents, or materials incorporated by 
reference.  

 
22. ACCESS TO DATA 

In compliance with RCW 39.26.180, the GRANTEE shall provide access to data generated under this 
Grant to COMMERCE, the Joint Legislative Audit and Review Committee, and the Office of the State 
Auditor at no additional cost.  This includes access to all information that supports the findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations of the GRANTEE’s reports, including computer models and the 
methodology for those models. 

 
23. ADVANCE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED 

No payments in advance of or in anticipation of goods or services to be provided under this Grant shall 
be made by COMMERCE. 

 
24. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 

This Grant contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other understandings, 
oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Grant shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of 
the parties hereto. 

 
25. AMENDMENTS 

This Grant may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties. Such amendments shall not be 
binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind each of the parties. 

  



 

 15 

26. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) OF 1990, PUBLIC LAW 101-336, ALSO 
REFERRED TO AS THE “ADA” 28 CFR PART 35 
The GRANTEE must comply with the ADA, which provides comprehensive civil rights protection to 
individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public accommodations, state and local 
government services, and telecommunications. 
 

27. ASSIGNMENT 
Neither this Grant, nor any claim arising under this Grant, shall be transferred or assigned by the 
GRANTEE without prior written consent of COMMERCE. 
 

28. ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
Unless expressly permitted under another provision of the Grant, in the event of litigation or other 
action brought to enforce Grant terms, each party agrees to bear its own attorney’s fees and costs. 

 
29. AUDIT 

A. General Requirements 
COMMERCE reserves the right to require an audit. If required, GRANTEEs are to procure audit 
services based on the following guidelines.   
The GRANTEE shall maintain its records and accounts so as to facilitate audits and shall ensure 
that subgrantees also maintain auditable records.   
The GRANTEE is responsible for any audit exceptions incurred by its own organization or that of 
its subgrantees.   
COMMERCE reserves the right to recover from the GRANTEE all disallowed costs resulting from 
the audit. 
Responses to any unresolved management findings and disallowed or questioned costs shall be 
included with the audit report.  The GRANTEE must respond to COMMERCE requests for 
information or corrective action concerning audit issues within thirty (30) days of the date of 
request. 

B. State Funds Requirements 
In the event an audit is required, if the GRANTEE is a state or local government entity, the Office 
of the State Auditor shall conduct the audit.  Audits of non-profit organizations are to be 
conducted by a certified public accountant selected by the GRANTEE. 
The GRANTEE shall include the above audit requirements in any subcontracts. 
In any case, the GRANTEE’s records must be available for review by COMMERCE. 

C. Documentation Requirements 
The GRANTEE must send a copy of the audit report described above no later than nine (9) 
months after the end of the GRANTEE’s fiscal year(s) by sending a scanned copy to 
comacctoffice@commerce.wa.gov or a hard copy to: 
 

Department of Commerce 
ATTN:  Accounting Services  
1011 Plum Street SE 
PO Box 42525 
Olympia WA 98504-2525 
 

In addition to sending a copy of the audit, when applicable, the GRANTEE must include: 
 Corrective action plan for audit findings within three (3) months of the audit being 

received by COMMERCE.  
 Copy of the Management Letter. 

 
If the GRANTEE is required to obtain a Single Audit consistent with Circular A-133 requirements, 
a copy must be provided to COMMERCE; no other report is required.  

  

mailto:comacctoffice@commerce.wa.gov


 

 16 

30. CONFIDENTIALITY/SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION 
A.  “Confidential Information” as used in this section includes:  

1. All material provided to the GRANTEE by COMMERCE that is designated as “confidential” by 
COMMERCE; 

2. All material produced by the GRANTEE that is designated as “confidential” by COMMERCE; 
and 

3. All personal information in the possession of the GRANTEE that may not be disclosed under 
state or federal law. “Personal information” includes but is not limited to information related to 
a person’s name, health, finances, education, business, use of government services, 
addresses, telephone numbers, social security number, driver’s license number and other 
identifying numbers, and “Protected Health Information” under the federal Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA).  

B. The GRANTEE shall comply with all state and federal laws related to the use, sharing, transfer, 
sale, or disclosure of Confidential Information. The GRANTEE shall use Confidential Information 
solely for the purposes of this Grant and shall not use, share, transfer, sell or disclose any 
Confidential Information to any third party except with the prior written consent of COMMERCE or 
as may be required by law. The GRANTEE shall take all necessary steps to assure that 
Confidential Information is safeguarded to prevent unauthorized use, sharing, transfer, sale or 
disclosure of Confidential Information or violation of any state or federal laws related thereto.  
Upon request, the GRANTEE shall provide COMMERCE with its policies and procedures on 
confidentiality.  COMMERCE may require changes to such policies and procedures as they apply 
to this Grant whenever COMMERCE reasonably determines that changes are necessary to 
prevent unauthorized disclosures.  The GRANTEE shall make the changes within the time period 
specified by COMMERCE.  Upon request, the GRANTEE shall immediately return to 
COMMERCE any Confidential Information that COMMERCE reasonably determines has not 
been adequately protected by the GRANTEE against unauthorized disclosure.  

C. Unauthorized Use or Disclosure. The GRANTEE shall notify COMMERCE within five (5) working 
days of any unauthorized use or disclosure of any confidential information, and shall take 
necessary steps to mitigate the harmful effects of such use or disclosure.   

 
31. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Notwithstanding any determination by the Executive Ethics Board or other tribunal, COMMERCE 
may, in its sole discretion, by written notice to the GRANTEE terminate this Grant Agreement if it is 
found after due notice and examination by COMMERCE that there is a violation of the Ethics in Public 
Service Act, Chapters 42.52 RCW and 42.23 RCW; or any similar statute involving the GRANTEE in 
the procurement of, or performance under this Grant Agreement. 
 
Specific restrictions apply to contracting with current or former state employees pursuant to chapter 
42.52 of the Revised Code of Washington. The GRANTEE and their subcontractor(s) must identify 
any person employed in any capacity by the state of Washington that worked on this Grant, or  any 
matter related to the project funded under this Grant or any other state funded project, including but 
not limited to formulating or drafting legislation, participating in grant procurement, planning and 
execution, awarding grants, or monitoring grants,  during the 24 month period preceding the start date 
of this Grant.  Identify the individual by name, the agency previously or currently employed by, job title 
or position held, and separation date. If it is determined by COMMERCE that a conflict of interest 
exists, the GRANTEE may be disqualified from further consideration for the award of a Grant. 
 
In the event this Grant Agreement is terminated as provided above, COMMERCE shall be entitled to 
pursue the same remedies against the GRANTEE as it could pursue in the event of a breach of the 
Grant Agreement by the GRANTEE.  The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided for in this 
clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law.  
The existence of facts upon which COMMERCE makes any determination under this clause shall be 
an issue and may be reviewed as provided in the “Disputes” clause of this Grant Agreement. 
  



 

 17 

32. COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS 
Unless otherwise provided, all Materials produced under this Grant shall be considered "works for 
hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act and shall be owned by COMMERCE.  COMMERCE shall 
be considered the author of such Materials.   In the event the Materials are not considered “works for 
hire” under the U.S. Copyright laws, the GRANTEE hereby irrevocably assigns all right, title, and 
interest in all Materials, including all intellectual property rights, moral rights, and rights of publicity to 
COMMERCE effective from the moment of creation of such Materials. 
 
“Materials” means all items in any format and includes, but is not limited to, data, reports, documents, 
pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes, 
and/or sound reproductions.  “Ownership” includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the 
ability to transfer these rights. 
 
For Materials that are delivered under the Grant, but that incorporate pre-existing materials not 
produced under the Grant, the GRANTEE hereby grants to COMMERCE a nonexclusive, royalty-free, 
irrevocable license (with rights to sublicense to others) in such Materials to translate, reproduce, 
distribute, prepare derivative works, publicly perform, and publicly display.  The GRANTEE warrants 
and represents that the GRANTEE has all rights and permissions, including intellectual property 
rights, moral rights and rights of publicity, necessary to grant such a license to COMMERCE. 
 
The GRANTEE shall exert all reasonable effort to advise COMMERCE, at the time of delivery of 
Materials furnished under this Grant, of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained therein 
and of any portion of such document which was not produced in the performance of this Grant.  The 
GRANTEE shall provide COMMERCE with prompt written notice of each notice or claim of 
infringement received by the GRANTEE with respect to any Materials delivered under this Grant.  
COMMERCE shall have the right to modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the 
Materials by the GRANTEE. 
 

33. DISPUTES 
Except as otherwise provided in this Grant, when a dispute arises between the parties and it cannot 
be resolved by direct negotiation, either party may request a dispute hearing with the Director of 
COMMERCE, who may designate a neutral person to decide the dispute. 
The request for a dispute hearing must: 

 be in writing; 
 state the disputed issues; 
 state the relative positions of the parties; 
 state the GRANTEE's name, address, and Grant number; and 
 be mailed to the Director and the other party’s (respondent’s) Grant Representative within 

three (3) working days after the parties agree that they cannot resolve the dispute. 
 

The respondent shall send a written answer to the requestor’s statement to both the Director or the 
Director’s designee and the requestor within five (5) working days. 
 
The Director or designee shall review the written statements and reply in writing to both parties within 
ten (10) working days. The Director or designee may extend this period if necessary by notifying the 
parties. 
 
The decision shall not be admissible in any succeeding judicial or quasi-judicial proceeding. 
The parties agree that this dispute process shall precede any action in a judicial or quasi-judicial 
tribunal. 
 
Nothing in this Grant shall be construed to limit the parties’ choice of a mutually acceptable alternate 
dispute resolution (ADR) method in addition to the dispute hearing procedure outlined above.   

  



 

 18 

34. DUPLICATE PAYMENT 
COMMERCE shall not pay the GRANTEE, if the GRANTEE has charged or will charge the State of 
Washington or any other party under any other Grant, subgrant/subcontract, or agreement, for the 
same services or expenses.  
 

35. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
This Grant shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Washington, 
and the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be in the Superior Court for Thurston County. 

 
36. INDEMNIFICATION 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the GRANTEE shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
state of Washington, COMMERCE, agencies of the state and all officials, agents and employees of 
the state, from and against all claims.  “Claim” as used in this Grant Agreement, means any financial 
loss, claim, suit, action, damage, or expense, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, attributable 
for bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or injury to or the destruction of tangible property 
including loss of use resulting therefrom.   
 
The GRANTEE’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless includes any claim by 
GRANTEE’s agents, employees, representatives, or any subgrantee/subcontractor or its employees. 
GRANTEE expressly agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State for any claim arising 
out of or incident to GRANTEE’S or any subgrantee’s/subcontractor’s performance or failure to 
perform the Grant.  GRANTEE’S obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State shall 
not be eliminated or reduced by any actual or alleged concurrent negligence of State or its agents, 
agencies, employees and officials. 
 
The GRANTEE waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it is required to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the state and its agencies, officers, agents or employees. 
 

37. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE GRANTEE 
The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by this Grant.  The 
GRANTEE and its employees or agents performing under this Grant Agreement are not employees or 
agents of the state of Washington or COMMERCE.  The GRANTEE will not hold itself out as or claim 
to be an officer or employee of COMMERCE or of the state of Washington by reason hereof, nor will 
the GRANTEE make any claim of right, privilege or benefit which would accrue to such officer or 
employee under law.  Conduct and control of the work will be solely with the GRANTEE. 

 
38. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE 

The GRANTEE shall comply with all applicable provisions of Title 51 RCW, Industrial Insurance.  If 
the GRANTEE fails to provide industrial insurance coverage or fails to pay premiums or penalties on 
behalf of its employees as may be required by law, COMMERCE may collect from the GRANTEE the 
full amount payable to the Industrial Insurance Accident Fund.  COMMERCE may deduct the amount 
owed by the GRANTEE to the accident fund from the amount payable to the GRANTEE by 
COMMERCE under this Grant Agreement, and transmit the deducted amount to the Department of 
Labor and Industries, (L&I) Division of Insurance Services.  This provision does not waive any of L&I’s 
rights to collect from the GRANTEE.  
 

39. LAWS 
The GRANTEE shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, regulations and policies of 
local and state and federal governments, as now or hereafter amended.  
 

40. LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION 
The GRANTEE shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal licensing, accreditation and 
registration requirements or standards necessary for the performance of this Grant Agreement.  

  



 

 19 

41. LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY 
Only the Authorized Representative or Authorized Representative’s delegate by writing (delegation to 
be made prior to action) shall have the express, implied, or apparent authority to alter, amend, 
modify, or waive any clause or condition of this Grant Agreement.  Furthermore, any alteration, 
amendment, modification, or waiver or any clause or condition of this Grant Agreement is not 
effective or binding unless made in writing and signed by the Authorized Representative. 

 
42. NONCOMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS 

During the performance of this Grant, the GRANTEE shall comply with all federal, state, and local 
nondiscrimination laws, regulations and policies. In the event of the GRANTEE’s non-compliance or 
refusal to comply with any nondiscrimination law, regulation or policy, this Grant may be rescinded, 
canceled or terminated in whole or in part, and the GRANTEE may be declared ineligible for further 
Grants with COMMERCE.  The GRANTEE shall, however, be given a reasonable time in which to 
cure this noncompliance. Any dispute may be resolved in accordance with the “Disputes” procedure 
set forth herein.  
 

43. PAY EQUITY  
The GRANTEE agrees to ensure that “similarly employed” individuals in its workforce are 
compensated as equals, consistent with the following: 
a. Employees are “similarly employed” if the individuals work for the same employer, the 

performance of the job requires comparable skill, effort, and responsibility, and the jobs are 
performed under similar working conditions.  Job titles alone are not determinative of whether 
employees are similarly employed; 

b. GRANTEE may allow differentials in compensation for its workers if the differentials are based in 
good faith and on any of the following: 

(i) A seniority system; a merit system; a system that measures earnings by quantity or quality 
of production; a bona fide job-related factor or factors; or a bona fide regional difference in 
compensation levels. 
(ii) A bona fide job-related factor or factors may include, but not be limited to, education, 
training, or experience that is: Consistent with business necessity; not based on or derived 
from a gender-based differential; and accounts for the entire differential. 
(iii) A bona fide regional difference in compensation level must be: Consistent with business 
necessity; not based on or derived from a gender-based differential; and account for the 
entire differential. 
 

This Grant Agreement may be terminated by COMMERCE, if COMMERCE or the Department of 
Enterprise services determines that the GRANTEE is not in compliance with this provision. 
 

44. POLITICAL ACTIVITIES 
Political activity of GRANTEE employees and officers are limited by the State Campaign Finances 
and Lobbying provisions of Chapter 42.17a RCW and the Federal Hatch Act, 5 USC 1501 - 1508.  
No funds may be used for working for or against ballot measures or for or against the candidacy of 
any person for public office. 

 
45. PUBLICITY 

The GRANTEE agrees not to publish or use any advertising or publicity materials in which the state of 
Washington or COMMERCE’s name is mentioned, or language used from which the connection with 
the state of Washington’s or COMMERCE’s name may reasonably be inferred or implied, without the 
prior written consent of COMMERCE.  
 

46. RECAPTURE 
In the event that the GRANTEE fails to perform this Grant in accordance with state laws, federal laws, 
and/or the provisions of this Grant, COMMERCE reserves the right to recapture funds in an amount 
to compensate COMMERCE for the noncompliance in addition to any other remedies available at law 
or in equity.  



 

 20 

 
Repayment by the GRANTEE of funds under this recapture provision shall occur within the time 
period specified by COMMERCE. In the alternative, COMMERCE may recapture such funds from 
payments due under this Grant. 
 

47. RECORDS MAINTENANCE 
The GRANTEE shall maintain books, records, documents, data and other evidence relating to this 
Grant and performance of the services described herein, including but not limited to accounting 
procedures and practices that sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any 
nature expended in the performance of this Grant.   
 
GRANTEE shall retain such records for a period of six years following the date of final payment.  At 
no additional cost, these records, including materials generated under the Grant, shall be subject at 
all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by COMMERCE, personnel duly authorized by 
COMMERCE, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal and state officials so authorized by law, 
regulation or agreement. 
 
If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records 
shall be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 
 

48. REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 
If required by law, the GRANTEE shall complete registration with the Washington State Department 
of Revenue.  
 

49. RIGHT OF INSPECTION 
The GRANTEE shall provide right of access to its facilities to COMMERCE, or any of its officers, or to 
any other authorized agent or official of the state of Washington or the federal government, at all 
reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance, and/or quality assurance 
under this Grant.   

 
50. SAVINGS 

In the event funding from state, federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way 
after the effective date of this Grant and prior to normal completion, COMMERCE may terminate the 
Grant under the "Termination for Convenience" clause, without the ten calendar day notice 
requirement.  In lieu of termination, the Grant may be amended to reflect the new funding limitations 
and conditions.  

 
51. SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this Grant are intended to be severable.  If any term or provision is illegal or invalid 
for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of 
the Grant. 
 

52. SITE SECURITY 
While on COMMERCE premises, GRANTEE, its agents, employees, or subcontractors shall conform 
in all respects with physical, fire or other security policies or regulations. 

 
53. SUBGRANTING/SUBCONTRACTING 

Neither the GRANTEE nor any subgrantee/subcontractor shall enter into subgrants/subcontracts for 
any of the work contemplated under this Grant Agreement without obtaining prior written approval of 
COMMERCE.  In no event shall the existence of the subgrant/subcontract operate to release or reduce 
the liability of the GRANTEE to COMMERCE for any breach in the performance of the GRANTEE’s 
duties.  This clause does not include Grants of employment between the GRANTEE and personnel 
assigned to work under this Grant. 
 



 

 21 

Additionally, the GRANTEE is responsible for ensuring that all terms, conditions, assurances and 
certifications set forth in this agreement are carried forward to any subgrants/subcontracts.  GRANTEE 
and its subgrantees/subcontractors agree not to release, divulge, publish, transfer, sell or otherwise 
make known to unauthorized persons personal information without the express written consent of 
COMMERCE or as provided by law. 

 
54. SURVIVAL 

The terms, conditions, and warranties contained in this Grant that by their sense and context are 
intended to survive the completion of the performance, cancellation or termination of this Grant shall 
so survive.  

 
55. TAXES 

All payments accrued on account of payroll taxes, unemployment contributions, the GRANTEE’s 
income or gross receipts, any other taxes, insurance or expenses for the GRANTEE or its staff shall 
be the sole responsibility of the GRANTEE.  

 
56. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

In the event COMMERCE determines the GRANTEE has failed to comply with the conditions of this 
Grant in a timely manner, COMMERCE has the right to suspend or terminate this Grant.  Before 
suspending or terminating the Grant, COMMERCE shall notify the GRANTEE in writing of the need to 
take corrective action.  If corrective action is not taken within 30 calendar days, the Grant may be 
terminated or suspended.  
 
In the event of termination or suspension, the GRANTEE shall be liable for damages as authorized by 
law including, but not limited to, any cost difference between the original Grant and the replacement 
or cover Grant and all administrative costs directly related to the replacement Grant, e.g., cost of the 
competitive bidding, mailing, advertising and staff time.   
 
COMMERCE reserves the right to suspend all or part of the Grant, withhold further payments, or 
prohibit the GRANTEE from incurring additional obligations of funds during investigation of the 
alleged compliance breach and pending corrective action by the GRANTEE or a decision by 
COMMERCE to terminate the Grant.  A termination shall be deemed a “Termination for Convenience” 
if it is determined that the GRANTEE: (1) was not in default; or (2) failure to perform was outside of 
his or her control, fault or negligence.   
The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this Grant are not exclusive and are, in addition 
to any other rights and remedies, provided by law.   

 
57. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

Except as otherwise provided in this Grant, COMMERCE may, by ten (10) business days written 
notice, beginning on the second day after the mailing, terminate this Grant, in whole or in part.  If this 
Grant is so terminated, COMMERCE shall be liable only for payment required under the terms of this 
Grant for services rendered or goods delivered prior to the effective date of termination.  
 

58. TERMINATION PROCEDURES 
Upon termination of this Grant, COMMERCE, in addition to any other rights provided in this Grant, 
may require the GRANTEE to deliver to COMMERCE any property specifically produced or acquired 
for the performance of such part of this Grant as has been terminated.  The provisions of the 
"Treatment of Assets" clause shall apply in such property transfer. 
COMMERCE shall pay to the GRANTEE the agreed upon price, if separately stated, for completed 
work and services accepted by COMMERCE, and the amount agreed upon by the GRANTEE and 
COMMERCE for (i) completed work and services for which no separate price is stated, (ii) partially 
completed work and services, (iii) other property or services that are accepted by COMMERCE, and 
(iv) the protection and preservation of property, unless the termination is for default, in which case the 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE shall determine the extent of the liability of COMMERCE.  Failure 
to agree with such determination shall be a dispute within the meaning of the "Disputes" clause of this 



 

 22 

Grant.  COMMERCE may withhold from any amounts due the GRANTEE such sum as the 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE determines to be necessary to protect COMMERCE against 
potential loss or liability. 
The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this section shall not be exclusive and are in 
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Grant Agreement. 
After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by the AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE, the GRANTEE shall: 
 
1. Stop work under the Grant on the date, and to the extent specified, in the notice; 
2. Place no further orders or subgrants/subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities except as 

may be necessary for completion of such portion of the work under the Grant that is not terminated; 
3. Assign to COMMERCE, in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by the 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, all of the rights, title, and interest of the GRANTEE under the 
orders and subgrants/subcontracts so terminated, in which case COMMERCE has the right, at its 
discretion, to settle or pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of such orders and 
subgrants/subcontracts; 

4. Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders and 
subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE to the 
extent AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE may require, which approval or ratification shall be final 
for all the purposes of this clause; 

5. Transfer title to COMMERCE and deliver in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by 
the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE any property which, if the Grant had been completed, 
would have been required to be furnished to COMMERCE; 

6. Complete performance of such part of the work as shall not have been terminated by the 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE; and 

7. Take such action as may be necessary, or as the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE may direct, 
for the protection and preservation of the property related to this Grant, which is in the possession 
of the GRANTEE and in which COMMERCE has or may acquire an interest. 

 
59. TREATMENT OF ASSETS 

Title to all property furnished by COMMERCE shall remain in COMMERCE.  Title to all property 
furnished by the GRANTEE, for the cost of which the GRANTEE is entitled to be reimbursed as a direct 
item of cost under this Grant, shall pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon delivery of such property by 
the GRANTEE.  Title to other property, the cost of which is reimbursable to the GRANTEE under this 
Grant, shall pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon (i) issuance for use of such property in the 
performance of this Grant, or (ii) commencement of use of such property in the performance of this 
Grant, or (iii) reimbursement of the cost thereof by COMMERCE in whole or in part, whichever first 
occurs. 
A. Any property of COMMERCE furnished to the GRANTEE shall, unless otherwise provided herein 

or approved by COMMERCE, be used only for the performance of this Grant. 
B. The GRANTEE shall be responsible for any loss or damage to property of COMMERCE that results 

from the negligence of the GRANTEE or which results from the failure on the part of the GRANTEE 
to maintain and administer that property in accordance with sound management practices. 

C. If any COMMERCE property is lost, destroyed or damaged, the GRANTEE shall immediately notify 
COMMERCE and shall take all reasonable steps to protect the property from further damage. 

D. The GRANTEE shall surrender to COMMERCE all property of COMMERCE prior to settlement 
upon completion, termination or cancellation of this Grant 
All reference to the GRANTEE under this clause shall also include GRANTEE'S employees, 
agents or subgrantees/subcontractors. 

 
60. WAIVER 

Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default or 
breach.  Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Grant unless 
stated to be such in writing and signed by Authorized Representative of COMMERCE. 

 



 

23 

 

  



 

24 

 

ATTACHMENT A - SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 
Funds awarded under this grant will be used for capital expenditures related to the construction of the 
Shelton Civic Center Parking Lot. The location of the project is: 401-499 West Cota Street, Shelton, WA. 
 
This project will convert a half block City-owned gravel parking lot into a paved parking lot with 
infrastructure improvements, landscaping, and community recreation amenities. Construction will include 
and not be limited to: 

 Project design 
 In-ground utility and stormwater system upgrades 
 Landscaping 
 Paving and striping the parking lot 
 Purchase & instillation of recreational amenities: 4 basketball hoops, 2 pickleball courts.   

 
This project began in June, 2019 and construction is expected to be complete by October 2020. 
 
All project work completed with prior legislative approval. The “Copyright Provisions”, Section 32 of the 
General Terms and Conditions, are not intended to apply to any architectural and engineering design 
work funded by this grant. 
 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that the declaration set forth above has been reviewed and 
approved by the GRANTEE’s governing body as of the date and year written below. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
 
______________________________________ 
TITLE 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

25 

 



 

26 

 

ATTACHMENT B - CERTIFICATION OF THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS TO COMPLETE THE 
PROJECT  

 
Type of Funding Source Description Amount 
Grant Washington State Department of Commerce $277,340.00 
Other Grants 

Grant #1  $ 

Grant #2  $ 

Total Other Grants  $0.00 
Other Loans 

Loan #1  $ 

Loan #2  $ 

Total Loans  $0.00 
Other Local Revenue 

Source #1  $ 
Total Local Revenue  $0.00 
Other Funds 

Source #1 Shelton Centennial Lions Club $4,200.00 
Source #2  $ 
Total Other Funds  $4,200.00 
Total Project Funding  $281,540.00 

 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that project funding from sources other than those provided by 
this Grant Agreement and identified above has been reviewed and approved by the GRANTEE’s 
governing body or board of directors, as applicable, and has either been expended for eligible Project 
expenses, or is committed in writing and available and will remain committed and available solely and 
specifically for carrying out the purposes of this Project as described in elsewhere in this Grant 
Agreement, as of the date and year written below.  The GRANTEE shall maintain records sufficient to 
evidence that it has expended or has access to the funds needed to complete the Project, and shall make 
such records available for COMMERCE’s review upon reasonable request. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
 
______________________________________ 
TITLE 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE 

 
 
  



 

27 

 

  



 

28 

 

ATTACHMENT C- CERTIFICATION OF THE PAYMENT AND REPORTING OF PREVAILING WAGES 
 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that all contractors and subcontractors performing work on the 
Project shall comply with prevailing wage laws set forth in Chapter 39.12 RCW, as applicable to the 
Project funded by this Grant Agreement, including but not limited to the filing of the “Statement of Intent to 
Pay Prevailing Wages” and “Affidavit of Wages Paid” as required by RCW 39.12.040.  The GRANTEE 
shall maintain records sufficient to evidence compliance with Chapter 39.12 RCW, and shall make such 
records available for COMMERCE’s review upon request.  
 
If any state funds are used by the GRANTEE for the purpose of construction, applicable State Prevailing 
Wages must be paid. 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that the declaration set forth above has been reviewed and 
approved by the GRANTEE’s governing body as of the date and year written below. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
 
______________________________________ 
TITLE 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE 
 

 
 



 

29 

 

  



 

30 

 

ATTACHMENT D - CERTIFICATION OF INTENT TO ENTER THE LEADERSHIP IN ENERGY AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN (LEED) CERTIFICATION PROCESS 

 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that it will enter into the Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design certification process, as stipulated in RCW 39.35D, as applicable to the Project 
funded by this Grant Agreement.  The GRANTEE shall, upon receipt of LEED certification by the United 
States Green Building Council, provide documentation of such certification to COMMERCE. 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that the declaration set forth above has been reviewed and 
approved by the GRANTEE’s governing body or board of directors, as applicable, as of the date and year 
written below. 
 

EXEMPT: DO NOT SIGN 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
 
______________________________________ 
TITLE 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE 
 
 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G4) 

Touch Date: 02/25/20 
Brief Date:       03/17/20 
Action Date:  03/17/20 

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By: Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  EM&R Flatbed Truck & De-Icer POs 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  -  PO2010 
  -  PO2010 Quote 
  -  PO2011 
  -  PO2011 Quote 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

A flatbed truck with plow and sander, and a de-icer unit were both authorized for purchase in the 2020 EM&R 
Department budget for a total of $105,000. Utilizing the Washington State Procurement list, both the flatbed 
truck and the de-icer unit can be purchased for a price well below the amount budgeted. Additionally, State 
contract vehicles include items that would not be included in a typical retail purchase, such as two additional 
keys and delivery to the customer. 

The current flatbed truck is a 1991 2-wheel drive Chevrolet and has well exceeded its useful life. A new, 
larger, flatbed truck will be 4-wheel drive, enable a plow/sander attachment, as well as be able to incorporate 
the de-icer tote and spreader bar onto the new platform; the current flatbed does not have either of these 
capabilities. Being able to utilize a plow, sander, and de-icer concurrently will provide an increased level of 
service during snow and ice storms. During the off-season, this truck will still be an asset for hauling steel 
plates, catch basins, and other large items. 

City policy requires Council approval for vendor purchases over $15,000. 
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Quoted purchase prices, including sales tax: 
 Ford Flatbed Truck with plow and sander: $83,965.56 
 De-Icer Unit for Ford Flatbed: $5,957.88 
Total purchase: $89,923.44 
Amount approved in 2020 Budget: $105,000  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to approve the purchase of a flatbed truck and de-icer unit by authorizing the Mayor 
to sign purchase order numbers PO2010 and PO2011”. 













Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G5) 

Touch Date: 03/05/20 
Action Date:  03/17/20 
1st and Final Reading of 
Resolution No. 1156-0320 

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By: Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Res. No. 1156-0320, Entering into an 
  ILA with Squaxin Island Tribe for 
  Planning and Design Efforts 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  - Resolution No. 1156-0320 
  - ILA with Squaxin Island Tribe   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
In late 2018, City staff began discussions with the Squaxin Island Tribe on potential projects that could be 

completed, with the ultimate goal of restoring streamflows in the Goldsborough Creek watershed. Staff 
identified two needs that would assist in reaching the goal: replace our current 30,000 gallon reclaimed water 
holding tank at the City wastewater satellite plant with a 750,000 gallon reclaimed water holding tank, and 
redirect raw sewage produced in the north Shelton (Mt. View) area that is currently being conveyed to the main 
wastewater treatment plant located in southeast Shelton, to the satellite wastewater plant located in northwest 
Shelton. 

In 2019, the Squaxin Island Tribe applied for, and was awarded, a Streamflow Restoration Interim 
Implementation Grant through the Department of Ecology. This grant will assist in funding several projects for 
the Tribe, two of which are mentioned above.  

The Squaxin Island Tribe is willing to utilize its Department of Ecology grant funding to reimburse the City for 
grant-eligible planning and design expenses related to the two projects. This Interlocal Agreement with the 
Squaxin Island Tribe clearly defines the roles and tasks each entity will complete to ensure we reach our 
collaborative goal, and Resolution No. 1156-0320 will provide the Mayor authority to enter into the Interlocal 
Agreement with Squaxin Island Tribe. 

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Planning and design efforts provided by the City will be reimbursed by the Squaxin Island Tribe, not to exceed 
the amounts identified and allocated in the ILA: $96,000 for Task 1 and $296,000 for Task 2. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests a first and final reading of Resolution No. 1156-0320 and: “I move to accept the Interlocal 
Agreement with Squaxin Island Tribe for reimbursement of planning and design efforts and adopt Resolution 
No 1156-0320 by authorizing the Mayor to sign the Resolution and ILA as presented”.   



RESOLUTION NO. 1156-0320 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE SQUAXIN ISLAND 
TRIBE FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN OF RECLAIMED WATER AND WASTEWATER 
CONVEYANCE FACILITIES 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton is a local government organized under Washington law, with all 
the rights and responsibilities pertaining thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Squaxin Island Tribe is a federally-recognized Indian tribe and a signatory party 
to the Treaty of Medicine Creek, with all the rights and responsibilities pertaining thereto; and  
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 39.34 RCW provides for local governmental units, including cities and 
federally-recognized Tribes, to make the most efficient use of their powers by cooperating on 
the basis of mutual advantage; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Squaxin Island Tribe has been awarded a grant through the Washington State 
Department of Ecology to fund the Goldsborough Creek Streamflow Restoration Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will be leading planning and design efforts for parts of the above mentioned 
project, which is expected to restore stream flows; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Squaxin Island Tribe will be reimbursing the City for its Grant-eligible 
expenditures related to the above mentioned project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is authorized to enter into an Interlocal Agreement pursuant to state law, 
and the Squaxin Island Tribe is authorized to enter into the Agreement pursuant to federal and 
Tribal laws. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as 
follows: 
 
Section 1.  The Mayor is authorized to execute the attached Interlocal Agreement with the 
Squaxin Island Tribe for Planning and Design of Reclaimed Water and Wastewater Conveyance 
Facilities. 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 17th day of March, 
2020. 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault 



 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT - 1 of 8 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SHELTON AND SQUAXIN 
ISLAND TRIBE FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN OF RECLAIMED WATER AND 

WASTEWATER CONVEYANCE FACILITIES  
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton (“City”) is a local government organized under Washington 

law, with all the rights and responsibilities pertaining thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Squaxin Island Tribe (“Tribe”) is a federally-recognized Indian tribe and a 

signatory party to the Treaty of Medicine Creek, with all the rights and responsibilities pertaining 
thereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chap. 39.34 RCW provides for local governmental units, including cities and 
federally-recognized Tribes, to make the most efficient use of their powers by cooperating on the basis 
of mutual advantage; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Squaxin Island Tribe has received a grant from the Washington State 
Department of Ecology (“Ecology”) to fund the Goldsborough Creek Streamflow Restoration Project 
(“Streamflow Restoration Project”) through Ecology’s funding agreement (Agreement No. WRSRP-
2019-SqIsTr-00029), which is incorporated herein; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Streamflow Restoration Project will include the planning and design of a new 
storage facility for reclaimed water, as well as the redirection of raw sewage produced in North 
Shelton neighborhoods from the City’s main wastewater treatment plant on Oakland Bay to the City’s 
Satellite Water Reclamation Plant (“WRP”) near the airport; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City is willing to lead efforts to plan for and design the above referenced 
facilities and sewer re-routing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tribe is willing to utilize its Ecology grant funding to reimburse the City for 
grant-eligible planning and design expenses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant to state law, and the 
Tribe is authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant to federal and Tribal laws, and applicable 
state law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the Tribe (collectively referred to as “the Parties”) agree as 
follows: 
 
Section 1.  Tasks.  The City’s planning and design efforts included in this Agreement shall comply 
with all applicable state and federal law and Ecology’s funding agreement and include the following 
tasks:  
 

1. Task 1:  In-ground storage tank for reclaimed water- Expenses for all subtasks listed under 
Task 1 sum up to $96,000, which matches “Task 2” in Squaxin’s funding agreement with 
Ecology. 
 



 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT - 2 of 8 

 

A. Purpose.  Complete planning, geotechnical evaluation and preliminary design of an in-ground 
storage tank for reclaimed water from the City of Shelton Satellite Water Reclamation Plant 
(“WRP”), with an estimated capacity of 750,000 gallons. The additional storage shall serve as a 
buffer to variability in use, backup for firefighting, and allow strategic timing of application of 
reclaimed water to the ground to benefit aquifers, streams and wetlands.   
 

B. Subtask 1.1.  In furtherance of the purposes articulated in Section 1.A of this Agreement, the 
City shall ensure that its employees and agents, including hired consultants, carry out the 
following subtasks:   

 
1. Review existing reports, designs, record drawings, and data on the existing reclaimed 

water storage tank, reclaimed water mains and distribution system, and Satellite WRP. 
 
2. Perform site visit to meet with operations and maintenance staff to review existing 

infrastructure and facilities, including the existing reclaimed water tank. 
 

3. Incorporate wastewater flow projections and reclaimed water demands for WRP from 
Facility Planning effort into analysis. 
 

4. Identify potential uses of reclaimed water and quality of water required. Determine 
treatment requirements and regulatory issues, including water rights issues affecting 
water reuse.  Comment on the technical and economic feasibility of water reuse options.  
Prepare conceptual cost estimates of water reuse systems to support this analysis.   
 

5. Evaluate the potential for augmentation of Goldsborough Creek, through provision of 
reclaimed water to the Creek (through wetlands or ground) or to the Washington 
Corrections Center (reducing well water consumption by WCC and thus increasing 
groundwater available for the creek).  Evaluate the possibility of treating and reusing 
additional flow from the Mountain View basins, if rerouted. 
 

6. Provide preliminary impairment analysis for Goldsborough Creek augmentation 
alternative.  
 

7. Attend phone conference or in-person meeting with WSDOC regarding opportunities 
for reuse. 
 

8. Document evaluation in draft 2020 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update/Wastewater 
Facility Plan.  Review draft evaluation in a meeting with the City and Tribe. 
 

9. Submit final 2020 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update/Wastewater Facility Plan to 
Ecology.   

 
C. Anticipated costs for sub-task 1.1.  The Parties anticipate the City will incur expenses up to 

$35,000 for accomplishing the subtasks outlined in Section 1.1 above.   
 

D. Sub-task 1.2, geotechnical evaluation.  In furtherance of the purposes articulated in Section 1.A 
of this Agreement, the City shall ensure that a geotechnical evaluation is performed at the 
preliminary site of the new reclaimed water tank.  Field work shall include two test borings to 



 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT - 3 of 8 

 

40-foot depth.  The City shall ensure that recommendations are provided for foundation design 
of the new reclaimed water tank. 

 
E. Anticipated costs for Sub-task 1.2.  The Parties anticipate the City will incur expenses up to 

$15,000 for the geotechnical evaluation referenced in Section 1.D of this Agreement.   
 

F. Sub-Task 1.3: Prepare Predesign Report.  In furtherance of the purposes articulated in Section 
1.A of this Agreement, the City shall ensure that a draft Predesign Report is prepared, including 
the following components associated with the new reclaimed water tank: 

 
1. Review existing and future reclaimed water demands, system configuration, pumping, 

and transmission requirements to determine the recommended size of the reservoir.  
Potential reclaimed water demands include increased groundwater recharge to benefit 
stream flows in Goldsborough Creek, Department of Corrections, State Patrol, Port of 
Shelton, Mason County Public Works, Shelton Hills Master Planned Development, and 
City Urban Growth Area.  Evaluate tank diameter/height combinations to provide the 
desired storage volume for peak demands, while maintaining the required overflow and 
base elevations. 
 

2. Based on the reservoir size and elevation requirements, identify the optimum location to 
construct the new reclaimed water tank.  The new location will take into consideration 
operation of the existing system during construction and allowance for staging of 
materials and equipment during construction of the new tank. 

 
3. Evaluate the various types of tank for the application to determine the optimum type 

based on the size and configuration.  Potential reservoir types include Reinforced 
Concrete, Pre-Stressed Concrete, Welded Steel and Bolted Steel.  Incorporate 
geotechnical recommendations for foundation design into the reservoir type evaluation.  
Evaluate alternatives for both capital costs and operation and maintenance costs to 
determine which type of reservoir provides the City with the lowest life cycle costs. 

 
4. Review reclaimed storage and pumping system hydraulics to determine the optimum 

piping configuration for existing and future system demands.  Identify any existing 
system components as retained, abandoned or demolished. 

 
5. Based on available site information and recommended alternatives, prepare a 

conceptual site plan including location of the new reclaimed water tank, routing of 
reclaimed water mains and other utilities, and site access improvements. 

 
6. Prepare a detailed preliminary cost estimate for the recommended alternative. 

 
7. Identify permits that will be required for completion of construction of the 

recommended alternative. 
 

8. Review draft report in a meeting with the City and Tribe. 
 

9. Submit final report to Ecology.   
 



 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT - 4 of 8 

 

G. Anticipated expenses for sub-task 1.3.  The Parties anticipate the City will incur expenses up to 
$46,000 for preparation of the preliminary design report under sub-task 1.3.   

 
2. Task 2: Redirection of sewer flows- Expenses for all subtasks listed under Task 2 sum up to 

$296,000, which matches “Task 3” in Squaxin’s funding agreement with Ecology. 
 

A. Purpose:  Complete planning and predesign for redirection of raw sewage produced in North 
Shelton neighborhoods, including Mountain View, new Shelton Hills, Goldsborough Heights 
and DARCI development areas from the City's main Fairmont wastewater treatment plant (on 
Oakland Bay) to the City's satellite reclaimed water plant near the airport.  A significant portion 
of the City's wastewater in North Shelton is currently treated and routed directly to Oakland 
Bay. Currently, that flow predominantly comes from the Mountain View Basin; however, in the 
near future, additional North Shelton flow is expected to come from the new Shelton Hills, 
Goldsborough Heights and DARCI development areas. Redirecting that water (or other from 
growth in the North Shelton area) to the satellite reclaimed water plant would make it available 
for use as reclaimed water high up in the Goldsborough watershed as a benefit to aquifers and 
streams and wetlands.  Preliminary estimates are that 500,000 gallons per day of wastewater is 
produced in the Mountain View area. Current and future wastewater flows will be further 
evaluated in the facility planning process. 
 

B. Subtask 2.1.  Wastewater treatment facility planning.  In furtherance of the purposes articulated 
in Section 2.A of this Agreement, the City shall ensure completion of planning services for the 
North Shelton wastewater diversion effort and update the corresponding portion of the 2020 
Sewer Comprehensive Plan/Wastewater Facility Plan, including the following components of 
this planning effort:   

  
1. Review existing reports, designs, record drawings, and data on the existing North Shelton 

sewer system. 
 

2. Perform site visit to meet with operations and maintenance staff to review existing North 
Shelton infrastructure and facilities. 
 

3. Use infiltration and inflow analysis, flow metering, and computerized hydraulic model 
constructed as part of 2020 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update/Wastewater Facility to 
evaluate current and future wastewater flows in North Shelton.  
 

4. Develop estimates for projected North Shelton flows (including Mountain View Basin and 
new Shelton Hills, Goldsborough Heights and DARCI development areas), including peak 
hour, peak day, maximum month, annual average and loadings (BOD and TSS)  
 

5. Identify preferred location, and establish design criteria, for a lift station to convey diverted 
North Shelton wastewater to the WRP. 
 

6. Provide preliminary conceptual evaluation of alternatives for a force main to convey 
wastewater from North Shelton to the WRP, and select a recommended alternative. 
 



 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT - 5 of 8 

 

7. Evaluate future feasible maximum capacity of the WRP and costs for upgrades to provide 
capacity. 
 

8. Develop capital and operating costs for the diversion of Mountain View Basin wastewater 
to the WRP. 

 
9. Determine the basins / subbasins to be re-directed based on the timing of development, the 

expanded capacity of the WRP and cost to provide that capacity, conveyance costs, 
environmental impacts, and other factors. 
 

10. Document evaluation in draft 2020 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update/Wastewater Facility 
Plan.  Review draft evaluation in a meeting with the Tribe. 
 

11. Submit final 2020 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update/Wastewater Facility Plan to Ecology.   
 

C. Anticipated expenses for subtask 2.1.  The Parties anticipate the City will incur expenses up to 
$77,000 for planning efforts under sub-task 2.1. 
 

D. Subtask 2.2.  Preliminary Design Report and Design.  In furtherance of the purposes articulated 
in Section 2.A of this Agreement, the City shall ensure completion of a preliminary design 
Report and  Design, including the following components of this design effort:   

 
1. Complete a siting study for a new pump station to convey North Shelton wastewater to the 

WRP.  Include preliminary geotechnical and archaeological evaluation of site. 
 

2. Provide detailed evaluation of alternatives for a force main to convey wastewater from 
North Shelton to the WRP, and select a final alternative. 
 

3. Provide preliminary wetland and archaeological evaluation of conveyance routes. 
 

4. Finalize design criteria (flows and head) for new pump station. 
 

5. Develop conceptual layout for pump station. 
 

6. Establish projected capital and operating costs for new pump station and force main. 
 

7. Prepare draft Predesign Report, incorporate findings from Subtasks 2.2.1 through 2.2.6.  
 

8. Complete field survey of pump station site and conveyance line route, estimated length of 
2,000 lineal feet. 
 

9. Complete preliminary drawings for the pump station and conveyance line. 
 

10. Review draft report and preliminary drawings in a meeting with the Tribe. 
 

11. Submit final report to Ecology.   
 



 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT - 6 of 8 

 

E. Anticipated expenses for subtask 2.2.  The Parties anticipate the City will incur expenses up to 
$219,000 for planning efforts under sub-task 2.2. 
 

Section 2.  General provisions.  
 

1. Authority/responsibility over consultants.  The City shall have sole discretion to select and 
retain consultants as needed to carry out the terms of this Agreement.  The City shall have 
responsibility for ensuring proper payment of consultants.   

2. Deliverables.  The City shall provide to the Tribe technical memos, reports, and design 
documents related to this Agreement upon completion by consultants.   
 

3. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either Party without prejudice to any other 
remedy that the non-defaulting Party may have if the other Party defaults in performance of any 
provision of this Agreement. The non-defaulting Party shall give the defaulting Party ten (10) 
days’ written notice of the non-defaulting Party’s intention to terminate this Agreement, within 
which time the defaulting Party may cure the default condition to the satisfaction of the non-
defaulting party. Should the defaulting Party be City, the Tribe shall ensure that the City 
receives reimbursement for all funding-eligible services satisfactorily provided up to the time 
of default. 

 
4. Records.   

 
a. The City shall maintain adequate financial records, in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, such that it can clearly and easily identify all claimed costs and expenses and the 
relatedness of those costs and expenses to this Agreement. 
 
b. All records relating to the Agreement, including materials generated under the Agreement, shall 
be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by the Tribe. 
 
c. The City shall provide the Tribe with copies of any records upon the Tribe’s reasonable 
request. 
 

5. Payments to the City.  After compensating consultants for funding-eligible tasks that are 
satisfactorily completed, the City shall submit billings and supporting documentation to the 
Tribe for reimbursement.  The Tribe shall request payment from Ecology grant funds, no less 
frequently than on a quarterly basis, and reimburse the City for costs expended.   

 
6. Limit on Tribe’s expenditures.  The Tribe shall be obligated to pay no more than $392,000 for 

the services in this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties. 
 

7. Agreement Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the date when both Parties have 
executed the Agreement, and remain in effect through completion of the tasks outlined herein, 
provided that the Ecology grant received by the Tribe remains in effect.     
 

8. Dispute Resolution.  The Parties shall attempt in good faith to promptly resolve any dispute 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement by first attempting to resolve the disagreement by 
informal discussions between persons with direct responsibility for administering this 



 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT - 7 of 8 

 

Agreement.  If that is unsuccessful, then the Parties shall engage in negotiation between 
executives who have authority to settle the controversy and who are at a higher level of 
management than the persons with direct responsibility for administration of this Agreement.  
If these informal negotiations are unsuccessful, then either or both Parties may agree to proceed 
to mediation, or a Party may proceed to state court. 

 
9. Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity. 

 
The Tribe expressly retains all rights and benefits of sovereign immunity.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of sovereign immunity or as increasing the Tribe’s liability 
beyond any statutory or other limitation of liability, except as expressly stated in this Section 9. 
 
The Tribe hereby grants and provides a limited waiver of sovereign immunity to enforce the terms 
of this Agreement.  This limited waiver of sovereign immunity shall apply in a state court of 
competent jurisdiction, after the Parties have complied with the Dispute Resolution provisions 
herein.  This waiver does not extend to and is not for the benefit of any third party and shall not be 
enforceable by any third party or by any assignee of the parties; nor does it extend to any other type 
of action or to any other forum or regarding any other matter.  No award for punitive damages of 
any kind may be made or enforced against the Tribe.  The limited waiver of sovereign immunity 
shall only apply during the period of performance of this Agreement. 

 
Any payment of a monetary judgment related to this Agreement, or any other defense and/or indemnity 
obligation related to this Agreement, shall be limited by and to the grant amount of $392,000. 

 
 

10. The City assumes full responsibility for acts, negligence or omissions of all its employees 
under this Agreement, for those of its subcontractors and their employees, and for those of all 
other persons doing work under contract with it.  The City shall indemnify and hold harmless 
the Tribe, its subsidiaries, and the officers, agents and employees of each, from and against all 
claims, damages, losses, and expenses related to or arising from the City’s services as set out in 
this Agreement.  Such claims include, but are not limited to, claims for bodily injury, illness or 
death, property damage (including loss of use, or other damage) that are caused in whole or in 
part by the City’s negligent act or omission, or that of the City’s subcontractor(s), or that of 
anyone employed by them or for whose acts the City or its subcontractor(s) may be liable. 

 
11. Taxation.  The Tribe is exempt from state taxes for goods and services received in Indian 

Country as provided in WAC 458-20-192 including, but not limited to, state and local sales tax, 
certain excise taxes, and others.  The City may be eligible for an exemption from state taxes for 
goods and services provided to the Tribe in Indian Country, as provided in WAC 458-20-192 
including, but not limited to, state and local sales tax, Business & Occupation tax, and others.  
The City shall comply with WAC 458-20-192 to perfect applicable exemptions from state 
taxation, and pay any other applicable taxes. 

 
12. Agreement administrators.   

 
Erica Marbet, Water Resources Biologist, shall provide general administration of the Agreement 
as the Tribe’s representative. 

  



 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT - 8 of 8 

 

Jeff Niten, City Manager, shall provide general administration of the Agreement as the City’s 
representative. 

 
13. Entire Agreement, Amendments.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the 

Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and 
understandings, oral or written, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter 
hereof. 
 

14. Severability.  If any part of this Contract is held unenforceable, the rest of the Contract will 
continue in effect. 

 
15. No separate entity.  This Agreement does not create a separate legal or administrative entity 

pursuant to RCW 39.34.030. 

16. Waiver.  If any Party fails to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement, it will not be 
precluded from subsequent exercise of that right. A failure to exercise any right will not 
constitute a waiver of any other rights under this Agreement. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement in Shelton, Washington, 
on the dates herein indicated. 

 
 
DATE:    SQUAXIN ISLAND TRIBE 
     
           

By:    _____Marvin Cambpell_______________ 
Title:______Tribal Administrator____________ 
Address:___10 SE Squaxin Lane____________ 

    __________Shelton, WA 98584_____________ 
    Telephone:_(360) 427-9781________________ 
    Facsimile:__(360) 426-3971________________ 
 
DATE:    CITY OF SHELTON 
     
           

By:       
Title:       
Address: __525 W Cota St._________________ 

     ___Shelton, WA 98584  ______ 
    Telephone:      
    Facsimile:      
 
















































	1 Agenda_20200317
	2 2020 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers
	4 Minutes
	5 2020 Code update staff report
	STAFF REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

	6 Briefing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	7 2020-0225 -FINAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Records Management_100-05 FINAL DRAFT
	8 2020-022720- FINAL DISCLOSURE OF PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY
	9 Briefing SWAT ILA
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	10 SWAT ILA version 2
	11 Briefing_Downtown Connector Final Acceptance
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	12 1_Final Acceptance Form Downtown Connector
	CAPITAL PROJECT
	FINAL ACCEPTANCE FORM

	13 2_DTC Before and After
	14 Briefing_DOC Grant Acceptance for Civic Center Parking Lot
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	15 01_DOC Contract_20-96627-226 Civic Center Parking Lot
	16 Briefing_EM&R Flatbed Truck & De-Icer PO's
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	17 PO
	18 PO2010_Quote
	19 PO
	20 PO2011_Quote
	21 Briefing_Res. No. 1156-0320, ILA with Squaxin Island Tribe
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	22 01_Resolution No. 1156-0320
	23 02_Shelton Squaxin Goldsborough Creek ILA



